
 London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Finance, Commercial Revenue and 
Contracts Policy & Accountability 

Committee 
 

Agenda 
 

Wednesday 29 January 2020 at 7.00 pm 
Meeting Room 1 (2nd Floor) - 3 Shortlands, Hammersmith, W6 8DA 

 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration: Opposition 

Councillor PJ Murphy (Chair) 
Councillor Patricia Quigley 
Councillor Fiona Smith 
Councillor Guy Vincent 
 

Councillor Donald Johnson 
 

Co-optees 

Tony Boys 
Erik Hohenstein 
Chris Littmoden 
Judith Worthy 
 

 

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Kayode Adewumi 

Head of Governance and Scrutiny 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 07899661869 
 E-mail: kayode.adewumi@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
Agendas are available on the Council’s website: www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees 
Members of the public are welcome to attend. A loop system for hearing impairment 
is provided, along with disabled access to the building. 

Date Issued: 29 January 2020 

mailto:kayode.adewumi@lbhf.gov.uk
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Finance, Commercial Revenue and Contracts 
Policy & Accountability Committee 

Agenda 
 

29 January 2020 
 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   MINUTES  4 - 9 

 To approve as an accurate record, and the Chairman to sign the 
minutes of the meeting held on 23 September 2019. 
 

 

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a Committee member has any prejudicial or personal interest in a 
particular item they should declare the existence and nature of the 
interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or as 
soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a prejudicial interest may 
also make representations, give evidence or answer questions about 
the matter. The Councillor must then withdraw immediately from the 
meeting before the matter is discussed and any vote taken unless a 
dispensation has been obtained from the Standards Committee. 
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance, then 
the Councillor with a prejudicial interest should withdraw from the 
meeting whilst the matter is under consideration unless the disability has 
been removed by the Standards Committee. 
 

 

4.   2020 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY (MTFS)  10 - 73 

 This report sets out the budget proposals for the services covered by 
this Policy and Accountability Committee (PAC). An update is also 
provided on any proposed changes in fees and charges. 
 

 

5.   RESERVES STRATEGY AND ACTION PLAN  74 - 91 

 This report provides an update on Hammersmith and Fulham’s reserves and 
sets out the strategy for their future use.  
 

 

6.   SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS - UPDATE REPORT  92 - 101 

 This report provides an update of the current position regarding Section 
106 (S106) balances of funds received and pending, and the proposed 
expenditure of S106 funds for 2019/20. It also provides a summary of 
the further work being undertaken, including on the governance 
arrangements for decision making. 

 



7.   CIVIC CAMPUS PROGRAMME - JANUARY 2020 UPDATE  101 - 213 

 This report provides the Committee with an update on the Civic Campus 
Programme – the redevelopment of Hammersmith Town Hall and West 
King Street. 
 
This report has appendices containing information exempt within the 
meaning of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and are not 
for publication. 
 
Any discussions on the contents of an exempt appendix will require 
the Committee to pass the proposed resolution identified at the end of 
the agenda to exclude members of the public and the press from the 
proceedings for that discussion. 

 

8.   COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  214 

 The Committee is requested to consider the items within the Work 
Programme attached as Appendix A to this report and suggest any 
amendments or additional topics to be included in the future. 
 

 

9.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING   

 The date of the next meeting - Wednesday 1st April 2020. 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - ACCESS TO INFORMATION 
 
Proposed resolution: 
 
Under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, that the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting during the consideration 
of the following items of business, on the grounds that they contain the 
likely disclosure of exempt information, as defined in paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the said Act, and that the public interest in maintaining 
the exemption currently outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information. 

 

 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

.  London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Finance, Commercial 
Revenue and Contracts 
Policy & Accountability 

Committee 
Minutes 

 

Monday 23 September 2019 
 

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors PJ Murphy (Chair), Patricia Quigley, 
Guy Vincent and Donald Johnson 
 
Co-opted members: Tony Boys and Chris Littmoden  
 

Other Councillors: Councillor Max Schmid, Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Commercial Services 

Officers: Kim Smith (Chief Executive), Hitesh Jolapara (Strategic Director - 
Finance and Governance), Emily Hill (Assistant Director, Corporate Finance), Peter 
Smith (Head of Policy and Strategy), Steve Miley (Director of Children’s Services),  
Tony Burton (Head of Finance – Children Services), Prakash Daryanani, (Head of 
Finance - Social Care), Michael Sloniowski (Principal Consultant - Risk 
Management), (Ian Cairns - Business Continuity Manager), Kayode Adewumi 
(Head of Governance & Scrutiny). 

  

13. MINUTES  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 2 July 2019 were approved and signed by 
the Chair. 

Monitoring of productivity  
 
Culture piece - HR to provide a report on productivity. Monitoring productivity 
changes as a result of our new ways of working. 
 
Action by:- Dawn Aunger – Assistant Director – People and Talent 
 

14. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Fiona Smith, Judith 
Worthy and Eric Hohenstein.  

Page 4

Agenda Item 1



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
15. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

There were no declarations of interest. 

 
16. BREXIT IMPACT REPORT  

 
The Chair welcomed the Members and officers to the meeting and asked the 
officers to focus on potential financial impact of a no deal on the borough. 
Officers noted that the Council and all other public bodies are planning for a 
no deal exit but the outcome was unknown.   
 
Settled Status 
 
H&F is providing a free document scanning service for EU residents. We are 
promoting the EU settled status scheme through our website; household 
leaflet drops have been made and adverts on 200 lampposts in the Borough 
will be placed. We are promoting positive messages encouraging EU 
nationals to stay, live and work in the Borough. We will know in November the 
impact of our messages when the next set of data is released by the 
Government. To date, 8,300 out of 30,000 eligible people have applied for 
settled status.  Members expressed concern that over 22,000 residents have 
not applied for settled status. Officers noted that there is an expectation that 
the figures would double due to our local and national campaigns and 
residents have up to December 2020 to apply.  Members asked officers to 
request for up to date data before the next set of data is released in 
November. 
 
Action 
 

 Seek up to date details of numbers of H&F residents applying for settled 
status before release of government figures in November (Peter Smith) 

 Counter the negative Brexit messages – Add to our current messages that 
“We offer great opportunities for you to develop yourself and career”. 
(Peter Smith) 

 Look into how we might be even more encouraging about persuading EU 
citizens to stay in the borough by promoting the learning and development 
opportunities we can offer them (Peter Smith) 

 
Workforce 
 
The Committee noted that officers were currently modelling a scenario of a 
potential 4% increase on the social care costs that may result from 
inflationary pressures, including those arising from Brexit. Any pressures that 
arise will need to be considered as part of the annual budget setting process. 
In addition, the Council have a business continuity plan which will deal with 
potential staff shortages. 
 
Action 
 

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 Officers to circulate to Members copies of Business Continuity Plans from 
our social care providers (Ian Cairns/Jon Lillistone) 

 
Supply chain 
 
The Committee noted that Business Continuity and Corporate Procurement 
are identifying clusters of corporate contracts (e.g. food, IT, construction, care 
and medical equipment) that may be more sensitive to no-deal Brexit 
changes. A cross-departmental Service Resilience Group (SRG), consisting 
of the core Directors from the Strategic Leadership Team, is forming 
strategies around contingencies for partial or whole loss of critical suppliers. 
The SRG chaired by the Chief Executive meets quarterly. In addition to the 
SRG, a ‘Tiger Team’ has been formed with specific Assistant Directors given 
lead responsibility for making urgent decisions in key areas of the Council’s 
operations. 
 
EU Funding 
 
Officers reported that our Adult Learning and Skills Service was funded by an 
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) grant up until August 2019, 
when the budget was devolved to the London Mayor.  This funding amounts 
to £2.7 million per year.  We will continue to receive the current level of 
funding up to 2021, after which there is no guarantee that the funding will 
continue.   
 
Environmental improvement projects, such as the sustainable drainage 
systems (SuDS) on Queen Caroline Estate and Maystar Estate, were funded 
by the EU Life project.  From October 2019, we will not be able to apply to 
this funding stream anymore.   
 
Action 
 

 Identify the amount of EU Life Project funding received by the SuDS and 
other environmental improvement schemes at Queen Caroline and 
Maystar estates (Emily Hill) 

 Clarify whether the Government will replace the £2.7m funding which is at 
risk.  (Emily Hill) 

 Confirm if we receive the whole of the £2.7m funding from EU through the 
GLA. (Emily Hill) 

 
Social Care 
 
The Committee was informed that the Council’s three main homecare 
providers have 11 - 21% of their workforce from EU countries and pay 
London living wage.  These three contractors provide 81% of the Council’s 
homecare services.  Officers are actively assessing the potential impact of 
social care provision in the event of a no-deal Brexit and service providers are 
supplying their contingency plans. 
 
 
 

Page 6



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Action  
 

 Officers to provide a breakdown of the non-European union workforce. 
(Peter Smith)  

 Officers to ask the homecare providers to add a message on staff payslips 
to promote settled status. (Peter Smith) 

 
Risk Register and Mitigation Costs  
 
The Committee noted the Council’s Corporate Brexit issues log.  Officers 
reported that the Council has access to other London authorities’ risk 
registers which we will review to ensure all bases are covered.  The 
Government has not approached the Council to second staff to the civil 
service to support ongoing Brexit planning. 
 
Action 
 

 Officers to provide an update on what the cost of the mitigation would be 
to give a better clarity of funds required. (Ian Cairns) 

 Find out what the issue is with the Coroner’s Service as set out as Issue 3 
in the Corporate Issues Log (Ian Cairns/Michael Sloniowski) 

 
Item for the next meeting – Update Brexit Report (Peter Smith) 
 
The Chair thanked the officers for presenting the reports. 
 

17. CIVIC CAMPUS PROGRAMME - SEPTEMBER UPDATE  
 
The Committee was informed that the programme is developing as planned 
and on track.  A small underspend of £44,031 against the budget is currently 
forecast. However, this may improve as the decant programme and 
reconciliation of budgets is completed. The overall programme is made up of 
3 distinct phases as follows: 
 
Phase 1 (Office Decant) – The decant of 1,400 staff from the Town Hall and 
Town Hall Extension into new office locations at Shortlands, Clockwork, 145 
King Street and 43 Beavor Lane was completed on 31 August as planned. 
There is a small group of staff waiting to relocate to 43 Beavor Lane upon 
installation of a BT fibre line which is due by the beginning of October.  
 
Phase 2 (Demolition and Enabling works) - This involves initial surveys, soft 
strip and final demolition of the site (Town Hall Extension only) in preparation 
for main works contract to process. The demolition contractor started onsite 
on 1st September. Hoardings have been erected and there is now no public 
access to the Town Hall and Town Hall Extension.  
 
Phase 3 – (Main works) – This sets out the design development, procurement 
of a main contractor and start on site. 
 
The Committee congratulated officers on the successful and smooth decant 
of the Town hall and town hall extension.  Officers were asked to set out the 

Page 7



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

whole project’s cost. In response, officers explained that the JV construction 
works will cost £130 million, another £38.8 million for the Town hall 
refurbishment works and £6.8 million for the Town Hall fit out. The 
development funds and capital costs will come from borrowing.  Up to £90 
million can be borrowed from the Public Works Board and lent to the JV at 
market rate, if required, to ensure we do not fall foul of the state aid rules. The 
Council will add £25 million in form of the land value which A2Dominion will 
match fund with another £25 million.  It was noted that A2 Dominion are 
paying for the current works. 
 
Members expressed concern that the Council was proceeding at risk with 
such a substantial capital programme with no contracts signed.  Nothing is 
preventing A2Dominion from walking away if they consider the development 
unviable.  The report was unclear on what the risks to the Council were nor 
where we are getting the money from.  
 
Officers reassured the Committee that the JV agreement will be signed in 
December.  A head of terms had been signed with a risk share agreement in 
place. The JV would be responsible for managing and delivering both 
contracts.  
 
The Committee concluded that a lot of good work is ongoing with good intent, 
but the details have not been nailed down.  The commencement of the 
TOWN Hall extension demolition works without a signed contract was an 
issue of grave concern.  Officers must ensure that these concerns are 
addressed.  
 
Action Points 
 
Members requested an update on the legal agreement covering: - 
 

 What is our risk? 

 What will prevent A2Dominon from walking away? 

 When will our risk be mitigated as the JV has not been set up? 

 Provide details of contracts to be signed between the Council and the 
JV up to the occupation of the refurbished town Hall. 

 

 Invite Currie Brown to the next meeting to provide an update. 

 Officers to re-circulate the heads of terms. 

 Officers to model more than 1 scenario in the terms of the timing factoring 
in major influences such as Brexit (deal or no deal), inflationary pressures 
etc. 

 
Action by Andy Starkie 
 
Item for the next meeting - Update Civic Campus – David Burns/Andy 
Starkie 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

18. COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  
 

The Committee noted its work programme and agreed that following reports 
be presented at its November meeting:- 

 Brexit – Peter Smith 

 Civic Campus – David Burns/Andy Starkie 

 Mitie Repairs – The report must contain KPIs – David McNulty  

 Financial assessment of the Council’s Carbon Zero policy (To check if this 
item would go to PSR, Environment or Finance PAC) 

 
19. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  

 

The following meeting dates for the municipal year were noted:-  

· Wednesday 20 November 2019  

· Wednesday 29 January 2020  

· Wednesday 1 April 2020 

 
 

Meeting started: 7.00 pm 
Meeting ended: 8.29 pm 

 
 

Chairman   

 
 

Contact officer: Kayode Adewumi 
Head of Governance and Scrutiny 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 07899661869 
 E-mail: kayode.adewumi@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Page 9



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 
Report to:   Finance, Commercial Revenue and Contract Policy & Accountability 

Committee 
 
Date:  29/01/2020 
 
Subject: 2020 Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
 
Report of: Cabinet Member for Finance and Commercial Services – Councillor Max 

Schmid  
 
Responsible Director: Hitesh Jolapara - Strategic Director, Finance and Governance 
 

 
 Summary 
 
 Cabinet will present their revenue budget and council tax proposals to 

Budget Council on 26th February 2020. A balanced budget will be set in 
accordance with the Local Government Finance Act 1992. 

 
This report sets out the budget proposals for the services covered by this 
Policy and Accountability Committee (PAC). An update is also provided on 
any proposed changes in fees and charges. 

 
 Recommendations 
 

1. That the Policy and Accountability Committee (PAC) considers the budget 
proposals and makes recommendations to Cabinet as appropriate. 

 
2. That the PAC considers the proposed changes to fees and charges and 

makes recommendations as appropriate.  
 

 
 
Wards Affected: All 

 
 

H&F Priorities 
 

Our Priorities Summary of how this report aligns to the 
H&F Priorities  

 Being ruthlessly financially 
efficient 

We need to always confirm that spend fits 
our Council’s priorities; challenge how much 
needs to be spent; and achieve results 
within agreed budgets. Finance is 
everyone’s business and every penny 
counts.   

 
Contact Officer(s): 

Page 10

Agenda Item 4



 
Name:  Emily Hill  
Position: Assistant Director, Finance  
Telephone: 020 8753 3145 
Email:  emily.hill@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Name:   Andrew Lord  
Position:  Head of Strategic Planning and Monitoring 
Telephone: 020 8753 2531 
Email:  andrew.lord@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Name:   Andre Mark  
Position:  Interim Finance Business Partner  
Telephone: 020 8753 6729 

Email:  andre.mark@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 
 
Not Applicable 
 

 
 

Proposals and Detailed Analysis 
 

The Budget Gap 
 

1.1. The 2020/21 gross General Fund budget1 is £525m of which the net budget 
requirement of £154.3m is funded from council resources (such as council 
tax and business rates) and general government grant. 
 
Table 1 – 2020/21 budget requirement  
 

Budgeted expenditure £m 

Housing benefit payments 110 

Departmental budgets 415 

Gross budgeted expenditure 525 

Less:  

Specific government grants (including housing 
benefits and dedicated schools grant) 

(234.5) 

Fees and charges (65) 

Contributions (e.g. health, other boroughs) (49) 

Other income (e.g. investment interest, rentals 
and recharges ) 

(22.2) 

Budget requirement rolled forward to 
2020/21 

154.3 

                                            
1
 Figures exclude capital charges and internal service level agreements. These have a net nil impact on 

the budget. 

Page 11

mailto:andrew.lord@lbhf.gov.uk
mailto:andre.mark@lbhf.gov.uk


 
1.2. The budget proposals  for 2020/21, and forecast to 2023/24, are summarised 

in Table 2. A balanced budget is proposed for 2020/21 with a contribution to 
reserves arising from one-off/ non-recurrent benefits, to enhance financial 
resilience, of £7.2m. 

 
Table 2 - Budget Summary  

 

  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

  £m £m £m £m 

Base budget 154.3 154.3 154.3 154.3 

Add:         

Cumulative inflation 
(including pay awards) 

4.2 8.4 12.6 16.8 

Provision for future demand 
& demographic pressures 

0 4.0 8.0 12.0 

Investment 8.3 8.3 8.3 8.3 

Increase in the unallocated 
contingency 

0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 

Savings and additional 
income 

-12.8 -13.5 -14.2 -14.2 

Adjustment for one off items 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 

Contribution to reserves 7.2 0 0 0 

Budgeted expenditure 162.2 162.5 170.0 178.2 

Less:         

Government resources (34.2) (34.2) (34.2) (34.2) 

Business rates (57.2) (57.2) (57.2) (57.2) 

Fair funding impact 
(estimate) 

0 4.0 8.0 12.0 

Council tax  (63.8) (64.4) (65.0) (65.6) 

One-off use of resources (5.3) 0 0 0 

Use of developer 
contributions for enhanced 
community safety 

(1.7) (1.7) (1.7) (1.7) 

Budgeted resources (162.2) (153.5) (150.1) (146.7) 

Cumulative budget gap  0 9.0 19.9 31.5 

 
Budget Assumptions 
 

1.3. Government grant funding will increase by £3.6m from 2019/20 to 2020/21 
as a result of the Government’s pre-election spending round in September 
2019. This increase follows a decade of grant cuts with overall funding 

Page 12



reducing by £68m from 2010/11 to 2020/21. This was a real terms funding cut 
of 54%. 
 

1.4. However, the government have indicated they will undertake what they are 
terming a ‘fair funding review’ in 2020/21. This has the remit of reconsidering 
how grant is distributed between authorities. It is likely to be bad news for 
Hammersmith and Fulham and other London authorities as it is anticipated 
that resources will be redistributed away from inner city areas, which have 
traditionally received funding to address higher levels of deprivation, to other 
parts of the country with lower levels of deprivation. The Council will 
campaign vigorously against any such distribution away from areas of higher 
need.  
 

1.5. The government has modelled an adult social care precept since 
2016/17. In the first years of the levy, the Council determined not to apply the 
levy in Hammersmith and Fulham, despite the fact the Council’s funding from 
government was modelled on the assumption that we would. Due to the 
continued high levels of inflation in the social care market and the 
government’s continued failure to propose a long-term funding solution to 
social care funding, the Council proposes to allow 2% of the government’s 
adult social care levy for 2020/21. The total levy increase for Hammersmith 
and Fulham over the 5 years to 2020/21 will be 4% compared to the 10% 
increase assumed by the government. The Council is committed to using 
such funding to support adult social care. 

 
1.6. An increase in the Hammersmith & Fulham element of council tax of 

1.99% is modelled for 2020/21. This will generate extra income of £1.2m in 
2020/21 and £4.9m over a four-year period. This will support investment in 
key services for residents and future financial resilience. The Hammersmith 
and Fulham Band D Council Tax charge is the third lowest in the country and 
35% below the London average. This is significantly below the July 2019 
Retail Price Index inflation used for the Council’s financial planning.  
 

1.7. The business rates system, as set out in Table 3, is changing for a fourth 
successive year. For 2020/21 the government have ended the pilot London 
Business Rates pool with the share of business rates retained by LBHF 
reverting to 30%.  

  

Page 13



 
Table 3 – Business Rates Retention Scheme 
 

 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Hammersmith & Fulham 30% 64% 48% 30% 

Greater London Authority 37% 36% 27% 37% 

Government 33% 0 25% 33% 

Pool arrangements None 100% 
pilot pool 

75% pilot 
pool 

Potential 
London 

pool 

Business rates revaluation Yes No No No 

H & F income (net of tariffs and adjusted on a like for like basis) 

H & F share of business 
rates 

£59.5m £56.5m £57.0m £57.2m 

Pool benefit (1-year lag i.e. 
2018/19 benefit recognised 
in 2019/20) 

0 0 £4.3m 
(£2.3m to 
reserves) 

£1.9m 
(to 

reserves) 
 

Assumed in 
budget/contribution to 
reserves 

£59.5m £56.5m £61.3m £59.1m 

 
1.8. London Local Government took forward a 100% business rates retention pilot 

in April 2018. This pooled business rates income across the 33 London 
Boroughs and GLA with all growth shared. The government reduced this to a 
75% pilot in 2019/20 and have announced it will cease for 2020/21. 
 

1.9. Current modelling forecasts that Hammersmith and Fulham will benefit by 
£1.9m from the 2019/20 pilot and this is assumed within the 2020/21 budget. 
As the pilot has ceased, the expected benefit is a one-off sum and therefore 
will be taken to reserves. The actual benefit will not be confirmed until 
September 2020. 

 
1.10. London Local Government is developing a new pooling arrangement, without 

government support, for 2020/21. The financial benefit will be significantly less 
(as the government will take a higher proportion of the income raised and 
growth). No benefit is assumed from a possible new 2020/21 pool within the 
current budget forecast. Any benefit will be considered within the 2021/22 
budget process. 

 
1.11. Table 4 sets out the business rates budget for 2019/20 and 2020/21. The 

business rates system sets a safety net threshold which guarantees a 
minimum income to the Council. The 2017 business rates revaluation resulted 

Page 14



in a high-level of rates appeals by businesses in LBHF. This has required the 
Council’s share of business rates income to be budgeted at the safety net 
threshold of £57.2m. The safety net threshold is set at 92.5% of the funding 
baseline (compared to 95% in the pool) resulting in a lower guaranteed 
income from business rates.   

 
1.12. The instability in the government’s approach to business rates makes 

medium-term financial planning difficult. 
 

 
Table 4: Comparison between 2019/20 and 2020/21 business rates 
income 

 

  2019/20 2020/21 

 £m £m 

Business rates baseline  123.0 78.0 

Tariff payable to the government (45.0) (16.1) 

Funding baseline 78.0 61.9 

Safety net threshold (included in LBHF budget) 74.1 57.2 

Less Revenue Support Grant collected within business rates in 
2019/20 

(17.1) 0 

Budgeted business rates  57.0 57.2 

 
 
1.11 An updated forecast for business rates will be undertaken by all Boroughs in         

January 2020. This will confirm the Hammersmith and Fulham 2020/21 estimate 
and provide more clarity on the potential benefits from the 2019/20 pilot pool 
arrangements.  

 
1.12 Developer Contributions. Planning obligations under s.106 of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), known as s.106 agreements, are a 
mechanism which make a development proposal acceptable in planning terms, 
that would not otherwise be acceptable. They are focused on site specific 
mitigation of the impact of development. Property developments have placed 
increased pressure on council services in recent years.  

 
1.13 Local planning authorities are required to use the funding in accordance with the 

terms of the individual planning obligation legal agreement. This will ensure new 
developments are acceptable; benefit local communities and support the 
provision of local infrastructure. In LBHF there are three broad categories of 
s.106 contributions received: 

 for a specific purpose defined and described in the s.106 agreement (such 

as specific highway works) 

 for a general functional purpose defined and described in the s.106 

agreement but with geographical constraints (such as provision of 

community infrastructure in the White City area) 

Page 15



 for a general purpose defined and described in the s.106 agreement but 

with no borough geographical constraints (such as economic development, 

education purposes, community safety initiatives etc). 

1.15 Provided the Council respects the obligation to maintain a reasonable 
relationship with the developments and complies with the specific terms of each 
of the s.106 agreements giving rise to the funds, the Council has a degree of 
discretion as to how it allocates and spends some of the general purpose funds.  
The Council has determined that a key priority area for the investment of 
available s.106 funds with general purposes is the provision of enhanced 
community safety arrangements. The 2020/21 budget assumes that 
contributions of £1.7m are invested to fund enhanced arrangements in this area 
and this can be met from receipts currently in hand. 

  
1.16 A number of s.106 agreements have been negotiated which will result in the 

receipt of additional funds in the future. There is a level of uncertainty around the 
receipt of future s.106 funds as this relies on developments commencing and 
achieving specified trigger points. The Council will continue to monitor the receipt 
of s.106 funds expected in the short and medium term, where the level of 
uncertainty around trigger points increases, and is developing a strategic 
approach for investment of future s.106 funds. 

 
1.17 Inflation. A national pay award has yet to be agreed for 2020/21. Provision is 

made within the budget for an increase of up to 2% (£1.7m) and this will be held 
corporately until a national agreement is reached on the annual pay award. 
Inflation of £2.6m has also been provided, on a case by case basis, to meet 
contractual requirements. 

 
 
 
INVESTMENT, SAVINGS AND RISKS 

 
1.18 The proposed investment in services and savings for the services covered by this   

PAC are set out in Appendix 1 with budget risks set out in Appendix 2. This 
PAC are also invited to comment on the wider budget proposals for all council 
departments. To assist this process a supplementary analysis of trend and 
cost data is provided in Appendix 5.  This identifies: 

 Investment, savings and inflation as a percentage of departmental 
budgets. 

 A summary of the current year projection 

 Trend unit cost data in key service areas. 
 
 

Investment  
 

1.19 Investment in services is summarised by department in Table 5 and by 
 category in Table 6. 
  

Page 16



 
Table 5: 2020/21 Investment Proposals 
 

Department £m 

Children's Services 5.5 

The Environment Department 0.5 

Public Services Reform 0.1 

Social Care 0.7 

Council Wide 1.5 

Total 8.3 

 
Table 6: Categorisation of investment proposals  
 

 £m 

Increase in demand/demographic growth 6.4 

Resident priority 1.9 

Total 8.3 

 
 Savings 
 
1.20 The Council faces a continuing financial challenge due to overall Central  

Government funding cuts, unfunded burdens, inflation, and demand and 
growth  pressures. The budget gap will increase in each of the next three 
years if no action is taken to reduce expenditure, generate more income 
through commercial revenue and continue to grow the number of dwellings 
and businesses in the borough. 
 

1.21 To proposed savings (including additional income) for 2020/21 are set out by 
department in Table 7. 

 
  Table 7: 2020/21 savings and additional income 
 

Department £m 

Children's Services (0.8) 

Finance & Governance (4.5) 

The Economy Department (0.8) 

Public Services Reform (0.3) 

The Environment Department (1.0) 

Social Care (2.5) 

Council Wide  (2.9) 

Savings (12.8) 

 
1.22 The saving proposals are categorised by savings area in Table 8. 

  

Page 17



 
  Table 8: Categorisation of 2020/21 savings  
 

 £’m 

Service rationalisation/budget reduced in line with spend (3.0) 

Commercialisation/Income  (2.0) 

Debt reduction and restructuring (0.3) 

Pension - triennial Valuation (2.1) 

Prevention (1.5) 

Procurement / Commissioning (0.8) 

Service reconfiguration (0.9) 

Staffing / Productivity (2.2) 

Total All Savings (12.8) 

 
Risk, revenue balances and earmarked reserves 

 
1.23 The Council’s General Fund gross budget is £525m. Within a budget of this 

magnitude there are inevitably areas of risk and uncertainty particularly within 
the current challenging financial environment. The key financial risks that face 
the Council have been identified and quantified. They total £18.5m. Financial 
risks of £24m were identified when the 2019/20 budget was set. 

 
1.24 Reserves play a crucial role in good public financial management. They exist so that 

a council can make one off investment in service transformation for the future or to 
respond to one off unexpected events or emerging needs. They are the foundation 
for good financial management and resilience. As one-off resources they can only be 
spent once. 

 
1.25 As part of the Audit Findings Report for the year ended 31 March 2019 the Council’s 

external auditors (Grant Thornton) commented on the level of the Council’s reserves: 
 
 ‘The Council’s reserves level is of concern as there doesn’t appear to be sufficient 

cushion to weather the ongoing financial challenges that the Council will face over 
the medium term due to reductions in central government funding and forecast 
pressures of the DSG funding. The Council only has finite reserves available and it 
is important that you continue to maintain appropriate budgetary control. It cannot 
be stressed enough how important it is to have a fall back position to address the 
challenges of the future.  We have seen a number of Councils reach the financial 
precipice and members have a fiduciary duty to ensure the Council retains financial 
sustainability.  We would strongly recommend that use of reserves remains limited 
in future years other than for specifically earmarked schemes.’ 

 
1.26 The Council has put in place a reserves strategy to ensure effective oversight 

regarding the level and use of reserves and established an action plan to 
maintain reserves at an appropriate level. In accordance with the action plan, 
the 2020/21 budget proposals include new one-off contributions to reserves 
of £7.2m.    

 
General fund balances 

 

Page 18



1.27 The Council’s general balance stood at £19m as at 1 April 2019 and it is 
currently projected that this will not reduce in the current financial year. This 
will leave general balances at 3.6% (equivalent to 13 days spend) of the 
Council’s gross budget of £525m.   

 
1.28 Given the on-going scale of change in local government funding, and risks facing the 

Council, the Strategic Director, Finance and Governance  considers that general 
balances need to be maintained within the range of £14m to £20m. The optimal level 
is projected to be broadly met over the next 4 years and is, in the Strategic Director’s, 
Finance and Governance, view sufficient to allow for the risks identified and to 
support effective medium-term financial planning.  

 
 Earmarked reserves 
 
1.29 The Council holds a number of one-off earmarked reserves. The latest 

forecast to 2023/24 is set out in Table 9. In the Strategic Director’s, Finance 
and Governance, view such reserves are adequate to deal with anticipated 
risks and liabilities. 

 
Table 9:  Reserves forecast to 2022/23 
 

 

 Opening 
balance 
2019/20 

Budgeted 
contributions 

to 2023/24 
Commitments 

to 2023/24 

 
Total 

2023/24 

 
£m £m £m £m 

Earmarked reserves 44.8 36.1 (37.4) 43.5 

New contributions in the 
2020/21 budget 

   7.2 

Forecast earmarked 
reserves 

   50.7 

General balances 19.0   19.0 

Earmarked restricted 
reserves 

17.5  (7.7) 9.8 

Current year forecast 
overspend 

   (9.5) 

Other potential uses of 
reserves  

   (28.6) 

Total reserves  41.4 

 
1.30 The existing commitments include the planned investment of earmarked 

reserves on council priorities (for example implementing the Information 
Technology strategy and incentive payments to landlords).  

 
1.31 Net General Fund reserves of £6m are set  aside for the civic campus scheme. 

This is based, in line with the current programme, on funding of lease costs for 
a 3.5 year relocation. The call on general fund reserves would increase  by 
£5.9m if relocation was deferred to 5 years. The scheme benefits include 
efficiencies in delivering modern, inclusively designed and fit-for-purpose office 
and civic accommodation for its staff and visitors, as well as for small and 

Page 19



start-up businesses. It also avoids the need for significant capital investment in 
the existing Town Hall and Town Hall Extension, which in 2017 was estimated 
at between £29.2m and £53.5m for both buildings, depending on the extent of 
refurbishment works undertaken and excluded professional fees (estimated to 
be at least £2m) and the cost of decanting staff to allow works to take place. 

 
1.32 The other potential uses for reserves includes allowance for a future shortfall in 

funding for pupils with high needs.  For Hammersmith and Fulham, there 
was a cumulative shortfall in the Dedicated Schools Grant (from government) 
provided to fund expenditure on pupils with high needs of £13.8m at the close 
of 2018/19. The Council is developing options for a deficit recovery plan and 
estimates that it will receive extra grant of £2.9m from 2020/21 onwards. 
Despite this funding increase, demographic and other pressures, require that a 
further £15m be set aside regarding the shortfall for the current year and next 
4 years. The Council is also discussing with auditors how this should be 
treated on the Council’s Balance sheet following a consultation by the 
Education Funding and Skills Agency. Pending further clarification, the Council 
has prudently set aside a reserve to cover the potential deficit. 

 
1.33 The Strategic Director, Finance and Governance considers that current reserves 

are adequate to deal with anticipated risks and liabilities. Reserves can only be 
spent once and the forecast to 2023/24 identifies a tightening in the Council’s 
finances that will need careful management and review. Continued focus will be 
required on keeping spend within budget, avoiding the use of reserves to balance 
future budgets and on rebuilding reserves to support future investments and 
priorities. 

 
 FEES AND CHARGES 
 
1.34  The budget assumes these are: 

 
- Frozen for Adult Social Care, Children’s Services and Housing.  

- A standard uplift of 2.8% based on the July 2019 Retail Price Index applied 

for other non-Commercial and non-parking fees. 

- Commercial services that are charged on a for-profit basis, will be reviewed 

on an ongoing basis in response to market conditions and varied up and 

down as appropriate, with appropriate authorisations according to the Council 

constitution.  

- Parking charges and fines are set in line with transport policy objectives and 
are not considered as part of the budget process. 

The proposed exceptions to the standard increase for all departments are set out 
in Appendix 4. 

 

2020/21 COUNCIL TAX LEVELS 

Page 20



 
1.35 The administration proposes to increase the Hammersmith & Fulham element 

of council tax by 1.99% for 2020/21. The Band D charge will be £792.42. This 
is significantly below the July 2019 Retail Price Index inflation used for the 
Council’s financial planning.  

 
1.36 This will result in a net cash terms increase of 3.7% since 2014/15 and 

compares to real terms inflation2 of 15% over the same period. Unlike before 
2014, no grant has been offered by government to councils who freeze or cut 
council tax. Instead, since 2014/15 the government, within the grant process, 
have assumed a Council tax increase of 12.6%. The 1.99% increase will 
generate extra income of £1.2m in 2020/21 and £4.9m over a four-year period. 
This will support investment in, and protect, key services for residents and 
strengthen future financial resilience. 

 
1.37 As set out below, 53% of dwellings are liable for 100% council tax with 

exemptions/discounts for council tax support claimants, students, care leavers 
and single person households. 

 
Table 9:  Liability for council tax 
 

Total dwellings in the borough 90,500 

Reductions:  

Exemptions (mainly students, includes care leavers) (4,000) 

Council tax support claimants (elderly & working age on low 
income) 

(11,400) 

Single person discount (25% discount) (27,500) 

Dwellings liable for 100% of council tax  47,600 
53% 

 

 
1.37 The government’s modelled adult social care precept levy of 2% will 

generate additional income of £4.9m over 4 years and £1.22m in 2020/21. This 
will increase the Band D Council Tax charge by £15.24 per annum (4.2p per 
day).  
 

1.38 The overall increase in the LBHF element of the Band D charge, including the 
government’s modelled 2% adult social care precept, is £30.40 (8.3p per day). 

 
Table 10: LBHF Band D Council Tax Charge 
 

2019/20 LBHF Band D charge £762.02 

Proposed H&F Element Increase of 1.99% £15.16 

Proposed Adult Social Care precept of 2% £15.24 

2020/21 Total LBHF Band D charge £792.42 

 

                                            
2
 As measured by movement in the Retail Price Index 

Page 21



 
Comments of the Strategic Director, Finance and Governance on the budget 
proposals 

1.39 Finance and Governance is proposing a net budget before Capital and Corporately 
Managed budgets of £24.364m. Within Finance and Governance, there are many 
services which support frontline council business. As such, £21.944m of the budget is 
expected to be recovered as corporately controlled income. 
 

1.40 There are proposed savings of £4.620m in 2020/21. These are outlined by category 
(Table 12) and by directorate (Table 13). 
 
Table 11: Finance and Governance budget 2020/21 
 

Section 
Expenditure Income Total 

£000 £000 £000 

IT Services 12,959 0 12,959 

Properties and Facilities Management 8,205 (706) 7,499 

Legal & Democratic Services 6,236 (5,018) 1,218 

Finance 6,018 (747) 5,206 

Commercial and Contracts 633 (4,240) (3,607) 

Audit, Risk, Fraud & Insurance 1,062 (36) 1,026 

Total Budget before Capital and 
Corporately Managed Budgets 

35,112 (10,747) 24,364 

Corporately Managed Budgets 4,202 (27,467) (23,265) 

Capital Charges 1,271 0 1,271 

Total Capital & Corporately Managed 
Budgets 

5,473 (27,467) (21,994) 

Total Finance and Governance 
Budgets 

40,584 (38,214) 2,370 

 
 
Table 12: 2020/21 Finance and Governance Savings by Category 
 

Category 
Total 
£m 

Service rationalisation/budget reduced in line 
with spend 

(0.21) 

Commercialisation  (1.90) 

Pension - Triennial Valuation (2.09) 

Procurement / Commissioning (0.32) 

Staffing / Productivity (0.10) 

Total Savings (4.62) 

 
  

Page 22



 

Table 13: 2020/21 Finance and Governance Savings by Directorate 
 

Section 
Total 

£m 

IT Services (0.30) 

Properties and Facilities Management (0.02) 

Legal & Democratic Services 0 

Finance (4.30) 

Commercial and Contracts 0 

Audit, Risk, Fraud & Insurance 0 

Total Savings (4.62) 

 
 
IT Services 
 

1.43 The proposed savings of £0.300m will be delivered through new contract arrangements. 
 
Properties and Facilities Management 
 

1.44 The proposed savings of £0.020m will be delivered by investing in utilities upgrades 
across the civic accommodation portfolio to reduce carbon emissions. 
 
Finance 
 

1.45 The proposed savings of £4.300m will be achieved by a reduction in General Fund 
contributions to the Pension Fund as a result of a significantly improved funding position 
following the Triennial Valuation (£2.090m).  
 

1.46 In addition there will be one-off additional business rates income realised through work 
with the London Pool Pilot (£1.900m), plus business rates that are payable by the 
council are less than previously forecast following budget scrutiny (£0.200m). 
 

1.47 There is a review underway of the finance function’s processes and systems to align 
with the new system (£0.100m) and a reduction in external audit costs (£0.010m). 

 
Equality Implications 

 
1.48 A draft Equality Impact Analysis (EIA), which assesses the impacts on equality of 

the main items in the budget proposals relevant to all departments is attached as 
Appendix 3. A final EIA will be reported to Budget Council. 

 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

 

Page 23



No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext. of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1. None    

 
 
 
 
List of Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1 – Savings and investment proposals 
 
Appendix 2 – Risks 
 
Appendix 3 – Draft Equality Impact Assessment 
 
Appendix 4 – Fees & Charges not Increasing at the Standard Rate 
 
Appendix 5 – Trend Data 
 
 

Page 24



Appendix 1

Children's Services and Education

Ref Nos Service Title & Theme Summary 
Delivery 

Risk 
(H-M-L) 

2020-21 Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2021-22 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2022-23 Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2023-24 Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

1
Commissioning 

Social Care  
Semi Independent Living

Improved model for care leaver housing delivered jointly between the Economy 
department and Children's Services

H (200) (200) (200) (200)

2
Travel Care and 

Support      

Travel Care and Support. 
Mitigations of existing demand 
pressure led overspend.  Options 
identified as most viable, aligning 
to the wider strategic aims of the 
council and manifesto pledges.

Operating Model of Travel Care and Support:
- Restructure of Management and workforce costs
- Personal Travel Care Budgets
- Use of current home carers and personal assistants to support clients in 
transport.

Extension of existing strategy:
- Provision of travel training to support young people to travel independently
- Review of vehicle types / summer mobilisation
- Sharing routes where it supports young people to be with their peers and 
friends travelling to the same destination

M (129) (129) (129) (129)

3 All Services Staffing Efficiencies
Staffing efficiencies and consolidation to partially close the service budget 
shortfall

L (250) (250) (250) (250)

4 SEND      
Disabled Children Care packages, 
direct payments and residential 
placements

Overspend addressed through co-production and implementation of policies and 
services to ensure needs to disabled children are met within local services at the 
earliest stage of need. This includes the development of a specialist behaviour 
outreach service, jointly with the Hammersmith and Fulham Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG).

M (257) (523) (578) (578)

(836) (1,102) (1,157) (1,157)

Ref Nos Service Title & Theme Summary 

2020-21 Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2021-22 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2022-23 Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2023-24 Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

CHSG1
Family Services Placements and 
Client Costs

 Full year effect cost of the current cohort with assumption of growth at the 
current rate. This is an increase £530,000 since October. Accounts for increases 
in placements and full year effects for 2020/21 on increases since period 6 (in 
year increase Period 6 to Period 7 is £263,000). Allows for net new placements 
to date in 2019/20 and to March 2021.

4,118 4,118 4,118 4,118

CHSG2
Short Breaks and Disabled 
Children Packages

Current expenditure in excess of budget for Children with Disability Packages, 
short breaks and direct payments. Assumes no further demand led growth.

513 513 513 513

CHSG3 Travel Care and Support
 Demand pressure for September 2019 cohort. Includes 9% assumed current 
rate of growth for 2020/21.

886 886 886 886

5,517 5,517 5,517 5,517Total

Change and Savings Proposals Budget Change

Children's Services - Total Change and Savings Proposals

Demographic & Growth Requests Budget Change

P
age 25



Appendix 1

Finance & Governance

Ref Nos
Service and 
Lead Officer

Title & Theme Summary 
Delivery 

Risk 
(H-M-L) 

2020-21 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2021-22 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2022-23 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2023-24 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

1 IT Services Cloud Strategy
Extensive programme covering applications as well as their 
supporting infrastructures – e.g. Data centres, Networks & 
Telephony

M 0 (100) (200) (200)

2
IT Services

Virtual Desktop 
Infrastructure 

Contract Saving
Full year effect of existing saving L (200) (200) (200) (200)

3 IT Services
Contract Review 
and Application 
consolidation

A systematic review of all the line of business applications 
contracts used throughout the council with the aim of reducing 
cost through renegotiation

L (100) (100) (100) (100)

4
IT Services

Application strategy
Map all the applications in use and develop an Enterprise 
Architecture Framework that enables us to  consolidate and 
simplify our application landscape

L 0 (50) (50) (50)

5
Finance

External Audit Fees Reduce budget in line with expected audit fees L (10) (10) (10) (10)

6
Finance Review of Finance 

function
Review of functions and processes to align with new system, 
plus self-service and automation strategies

L (100) (200) (200) (200)

7 Finance Review of NNDR Saving based on outturn position for 2018/19 L (200) (200) (200) (200)

8 Finance
Business Rates 

income

Work closely with the London Pool to deliver additional 
benefits for LBHF. Initial estimated one-off benefit for 
2020/21is £1.9m

L (1,900) 0 0 0

9
Property & 
Facilities 

Management

Energy efficiency 
works/climate 

change

Review and work to invest in utilities upgrades across the 
Council's civic accommodation portfolio to reduce carbon 
emissions

M (20) (60) (75) (75)

10
Pensions Triennial valuation 

of Pension Fund

Triennial valuation of Pension Fund as a result of the success 
of the investment strategy has led to an improved funding 
position. This is likely to lead to a reduction in the level of 
General Fund contributions payable by the Council. Final 
valuation to be confirmed in early 2020. 

L (2,090) (2,090) (2,090) (2,090)

(4,620) (3,010) (3,125) (3,125)

Change and Savings Proposals Budget Change

Finance & Governance - Total Change and Savings Proposals 

P
age 26



Appendix 1

The Economy Department

Ref Nos
Service and 
Lead Officer 

Title & Theme Summary 
Delivery 

Risk 
(H-M-L) 

2020-21 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2021-22 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2022-23 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2023-24 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

ECO1
Housing 
Solutions

Reduction in Temporary 
Accommodation (TA) 

Work to secure longer-term private sector 
accommodation for residents instead of temporary 
accommodation, without impacting their place on the 
housing register

M (196) (392) (392) (392)

ECO2
Housing 
Solutions

Reduction in Temporary 
Accommodation (TA) 

PSL B&B Rent - improved void management L (115) (115) (115) (115)

ECO3
Housing 
Solutions

Improved debt management
Improved debt management resulting in higher 
collection rates on  income

L (286) (286) (286) (286)

ECO4
Housing 
Solutions

Consolidation of management 
& workforce and reduction in 
the use of agency staff

Current implementation of approved restructure will 
reduce agency staff and enable overall staffing.  This 
is the beginning of a phased savings delivery 
programme. 

M (100) (200) (400) (400)

ECO5
Housing 
Solutions

Improved and digitalised front 
door and assessment 
pathway

The service has implemented digitalisation including 
on-line application forms and information, self service 
processes at the customer service centre.  This has 
reduced footfall and contributed to more streamlined 
services.  On-going digitalisation will achieve the 
forecasted savings as part of on-going service 
transformation. 

M 0 0 (180) (180)

ECO6
Economic 

Development
Review and restructure of 
economic development

Review of the economic development service and 
restructure

M (61) (61) (61) (61)

(758) (1,054) (1,434) (1,434)

Change and Savings Proposals Budget Change

The Economy - Total Change and Savings Proposals 

P
age 27



Appendix 1

The Environment Department

Ref 
Nos

Service and 
Lead Officer

Title & Theme Summary
Delivery 

Risk 
(H-M-L) 

2020-21 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2021-22 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2022-23 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2023-24 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

1
Leisure 
Contract New Leisure Contract

New leisure contract from 2019/20 secures better terms following investment in 
improved facilities.

L (174) (275) (342) (342)

2
Highway Street 

Lighting
Intelligent street 
lighting energy 
management

Install sensors on street lighting (street lamps, illuminated signs and bollards) to 
remotely control hours and levels of illumination in line with resident feedback. 
Requires circa £1.1m one off investment => pay back period of 12 years. 
Installation of the sensors provides flexibility around illumination levels and 
potential for increased energy savings in the longer term.

M (15) (94) (97) (97)

3
Pest Control

Maximise pest control 
income

Review of service to improve income (subject to full business case) or adjust 
spend in line with current activity. 

M (35) (70) (70) (70)

4 Parking Parking Recognition of existing Parking Income Surplus. L (750) (750) (750) (750)

(974) (1,189) (1,259) (1,259)

Ref 
Nos

Service Title & Theme Summary

2020-21 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2021-22 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2022-23 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2023-24 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

ENVG1 Emergency Planning - enhanced service (currently 2 unfunded posts). 58 58 58 58
ENVG2 Investment in libraries service 97 97 97 97
ENVG3 Investment in Waste Management and Street Cleansing 188 188 188 188
ENVG4 Waste Collection - additional costs from increased number of households. 149 379 609 834

492 722 952 1,177Total

DEMOGRAPHIC AND GROWTH REQUESTS Budget Change

Change and Savings Proposals Budget Change

The Environment - Total Change and Savings Proposals 

P
age 28



Appendix 1

Public Service Reform

Ref Nos Service Title & Theme Summary 
Delivery 

Risk 
(H-M-L) 

2020-21 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2021-22 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2022-23 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2023-24 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

1
Department-

wide
Staffing and efficiencies 

Review of  PSR  with view to restructuring to realise 
efficiencies (net savings after resolving current 
staffing pressures). 

L (255) (255) (255) (255)

(255) (255) (255) (255)

Ref Nos Service Title & Theme Summary 

2020-21 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2021-22 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2022-23 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2023-24 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

PSRG1
Strategy and community engagement - shared 
strategic lead co-production post.

56 56 56 56

56 56 56 56Total

Change and Savings Proposals Budget Change

Public Services Reform - Total Change and Savings Proposals 

Demographic & Growth Requests Budget Change

P
age 29



Appendix 1

Social Care

Ref Nos Service Title & Theme Summary 
Delivery 

Risk 
(H-M-L) 

2020-21 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2021-22 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2022-23 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2023-24 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

SC1
Operations, Learning 

Disabilities & In-House        
Better demand management and 
choice from acute hospitals

Reviewing much earlier and more effectively the arrangements on discharge from 
acute hospitals and making the right choices in relation to the next steps for older 
people. Review care needs to determine if they meet NHS Continuing Health Care 
funding.

M (1,500) (1,500) (1,500) (1,500)

SC2 Operations  
Home Care – Improve contract 
management.

Prioritising reviews with people and taking very prompt action after "No replies" and 
cancellations of provision with the home care providers. 

L (250) (250) (250) (250)

SC3
Operations, Learning 

Disabilities, Mental Health 
& In-House  

Ongoing review of staffing
Continued monitoring and review of social care staffing structures and budgets 
through monthly staffing board & budget management meetings chaired by the 
Director.

H 0 (200) (200) (200)

SC4 In-House         Transport
Review transport model at options day services  - working with our people and their 
carers to co-produce transport options which respect their individual circumstances 
and that promote independent living. 

M (100) (100) (100) (100)

SC5 Mental Health        
Better Mental Health Care and Support 
Services for new and existing demand

Supporting the transfer of our people from expensive out of Borough residential 
placements back into local supported accommodation, to further develop our 
supported housing offer and to deliver better outcomes for our residents  

M (165) (165) (165) (165)

SC6 Learning Disabilities        
Continued improvement of Transitions 
work

Further work with young people and their families to co-produce and communicate 
what happens at every stage of their transitions journey. Focused multi-agency 
work from Year 9 in schools; further development of information what's available 
locally in terms of education; supported employment and independent living.  Work 
with commissioning to expand local services for young adults which enable them to 
achieve good outcomes in Hammersmith and Fulham.

M (200) (200) (200) (200)

SC7
Operations, Learning 

Disabilities, Mental Health 
& In-House  

Change the way we approach carrying 
out assessments using a co-production 
approach

Work with the co-production team to review our procedures, involve people in sign 
posting and initial conversations to understand what people are able to do and how 
we support independent living.

H 0 (800) (900) (900)

SC8 Adults Commissioning Supply and contract management
There are a number of re-commissioning opportunities for floating support services 
which will develop the offer, improve value for money and be subject to tighter 
contract monitoring. 

H (250) (500) (500) (500)

SC9 All divisions    
Introduce technology in how we work 
with people

Use of technology, to  improve communications with people, access to information 
and advice and promote independence.

M 0 (200) (200) (200)

(2,465) (3,915) (4,015) (4,015)

Ref Nos Service Title & Theme Summary 

2020-21 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2021-22 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2022-23 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2023-24 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

SCG1
Mental Health & Learning Disabilities - demographic pressures & more complex 
needs.

590 1,528 2,492 3,484

SCG2
Learning Disability Transitions - increasing number of disabled children 
transitioning into adult services.

177 671 735 810

767 2,199 3,227 4,294Total

Firm Change and Savings Proposals Budget Change

Demographic & Growth Requests Budget Change

Social Care - Total Firm Change and Savings Proposals 

P
age 30



Appendix 1

Councilwide

Ref Nos
Service & 
Lead Officer 

Title & Theme Summary 
Delivery 

Risk 
(H-M-L) 

2020-21 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2021-22 Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2022-23 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2023-24 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

Councilwide Employee Savings
Realignment of councilwide budgets to deliver council wide 
productivity gains and achieve savings through new ways of working L (1,250) (1,250) (1,250) (1,250)

HRA Recharges Realignment Recharges realigned following in-insourcing and staffing restructures L (1,695) (1,695) (1,695) (1,695)

(2,945) (2,945) (2,945) (2,945)

Ref Nos Service Title & Theme Summary 

2020-21 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2021-22 Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2022-23 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2023-24 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

CWG1
Treasury 

Management
Investment income and borrowing 

costs
Net cost of borrowing - reduction in cash and increased borrowing 
requirement to deliver the Council's capital programme

1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500

1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500Total

Demographic & Growth Requests Budget Change

Change and Savings Proposals Budget Change

Councilwide - Total Change and Savings Proposals 

P
age 31



Appendix 1

Public Health (to be reinvested in public health outcomes)

Ref Nos
Service & 
Lead Officer 

Title & Theme Summary 
Delivery 

Risk 
(H-M-L) 

2020-21 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2021-22 Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2022-23 Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

2023-24 Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's)

PH1 PH Commissioning 0-19 Public Health nursing 
2020/21 savings and procurement of new model 
for 2021/22 of health visiting and school nursing L (220) (220) (220) (220)

PH2 PH Commissioning Core drug and alcohol services 
Redesign and re-procurement of co-produced core 
drug and alcohol services  M 0 (280) (280) (280)

PH3 PH Commissioning In year remodelling Community screening and contraception services M (150) (150) (150) (150)

PH4 Cross Service
Review of Adults & Public Health 

Commissioning. 
Review of management resources L (60) (60) (60) (60)

(430) (710) (710) (710)

Change and Savings Proposals Budget Change

Public Health - Total Change and Savings Proposals 

P
age 32



Appendix 2

Children's Services Risk/Challenges

Department & Division Short Description of Risk
2020/21 
Value 

(£000's)

2021/22  
Value 

(£000's)

2022/23 
Value 

(£000's)

2023/24 
Value 

(£000's)
Mitigation

Children's Services

Travel Care and Support
Expected pressure, based 2019/20 overspend and 9% growth in numbers, exceeds 
awarded budget growth of £886,000.

             483              483              483              483 

Options put forward to deliver £129,000 savings. 
Further options will need to be found to mitigate 
pressure. Further growth from September 2020 is not 
included in these figures and will need to be modelled 
during 2020/21.

Staffing
Current vacancy factor across Children's services which includes Commissioning  
£264,000 (19% of budget), SEN £236,000 (4.2% of budget), Family Services £137,000 
(1% of budget) and Education £40,000 (2.7% of budget).

             677              677              677              677 Staffing review to be undertaken.

SEND time limited staff growth SEND Service Enhancement - Short Term Growth agreed for 3 years in 2018/19 MTFS.                 -                290              290              290 

Family Assessments Spot purchase and contracted Family Assessments costs.              153              153              153              153 
 Commissioning led review underway to reduce unit 
cost of assessments. 

Commisioned Children and Young 
Peoples Services

Early years, early help, childrens centres and youth provision.           1,500           1,500           1,500           1,500  Mitigations being developed .  

Commercialisation of the Haven Overspend on the Haven due to loss of income.              250                 -                   -                   -   
Legal Costs Based on 2019/20 forecast.              350              350              350              350 
Children's Services Total 3,413 3,453 3,453 3,453 

Risk

P
age 33



Appendix 2

Department & 
Division

Short Description of Risk
2020/21 
Value 

(£000's)

2021/22 
Value 

(£000's)

2022/23 
Value 

(£000's)

2023/24 
Value 

(£000's)
Mitigation

Social Care

All divisions
There is the potential for contract market inflation and wage pressures 
to be greater then budget provided for. 

942 846 846 846 

Social Care will set up a task and finish group of staff from within Commissioning and 
Brokerage to negotiate with providers on the inflationary increases to be awarded.  A 
recommendation will be presented to the Social Care Leadership team to make a 
final decision. 

Operations Year on year savings programmes are increasingly difficult to deliver. 600 600 600 600 

All divisions
Existing budget pressures and the full year effect / costs in 2020/21 of 
residents entering the care system in 2019/20.

1,100 1,100 1,100 1,100 
Regular reviews of residents care needs to ensure that care plans accurately reflect 
current assessed care needs.

All divisions
Liberty Protection Safeguarding new burdens (system implementation 
in 2020/21 and training costs starting in 2021/22).

100 200 200 200 The code of practice is expected to come before Parliament in spring 2020.

All divisions Non-recurrent grant funding of Winter pressures ending in March 2021. 0 918 918 918 
All divisions Ending of Improved Better Care Fund in March 2021. 0 8,814 8,814 8,814 

Social Care Total 2,742 12,478 12,478 12,478 

Social Care Risks/ Challenges

Risk

The Council is waiting for the announcement of the Government's 'fair funding' and 
2020 spending review to see how the impact of non-recurrent grant funding may be 

P
age 34



Appendix 2

The Environment Department Risk/Challenges

Directorate Department & Division Short Description of Risk
2020/21 
Value 

(£000's)

2021/22  
Value 

(£000's)

2022/23 
Value 

(£000's)

2023/24 
Value 

(£000's)
Mitigation

The Environment Department

Public Realm Fleet Management
Fleet management service contract provided on behalf of 
other boroughs not renewed

60 60 60 60 
Initiate contract discussions early. Identify substitute business as far 
as possible (limited opportunities expected).

Public Realm Waste Disposal
Waste disposal rates and tonnages increase by more 
than budget

150 150 150 150 
Regular finance review and reporting through DMT. Continue to 
progress action plans to target reductions in general waste tonnages 
and increase recycling.

Public Realm Waste Management
Unfunded waste management and street cleansing 
contract inflation unable to be managed within budget

399 399 399 
Ongoing discussions with senior management regarding historic 
inflation.

Public Realm Waste Management Existing contract savings not achieved 242 242 242 242 Ongoing discussions with the contractor.

Public Realm Commercial Waste Commercial waste income levels unable to be increased 240 240 240 240 
New staffing structure to be implemented with an increased focus on 
sales.

Community Safety & Regulatory 
Servies

Building Control
Non fee charging Building Control activities unable to be 
contained within budget

150 150 150 150 To be monitored and reported in year.

Community Safety & Regulatory 
Servies

Building Control
Income shortfall on chargeable Building Control activites 
due to reduction in service demand and general 
downturn in the economy

100 100 100 100 
Undertake cost recovery analysis for Building Control (align income 
and expenditure) and implement policy for all building control works to 
be commissioned from the in-house service.

Community Safety & Regulatory 
Servies

Emergency Planning - Civil 
Protection

Emergency Planning staffing unable to be contained 
within budget (after approved growth for 2020/21)

50 50 50 50 
Review staffing structure and/or get contribution from other 
departments for this vital council-wide service

Community Safety & Regulatory 
Servies

Emergency Planning - Silver 
Rota

Emergency Response Rota staffing unable to be 
contained within budget

33 33 33 33 
Reduce rota or get contribution from other departments for this vital 
council-wide service

Leisure, Sport & Culture Libraries
Library service unable to be contained within budget 
(after approved growth for 2020/21)

53 53 53 53 
Service review underway with the aim of removing ongoing budget 
pressures

Leisure, Sport & Culture Parks
Unfunded grounds maintenance contract inflation unable 
to be managed within budget

52 52 52 52 
Ongoing discussions with the contractor to reduce spend. May result 
in changes in service specification

Leisure, Sport & Culture Civic Services
Registrars income less than budget - potential loss of 
business resulting from Hammersmith Town Hall decant

110 67 67 67 
Service working to maintain existing levels of income through 
increased sales and marketing. Provision made from the Civic 
Campus reserve to fund any losses compared to budget.

Leisure, Sport & Culture Culture 
Loss of lettings income as a result of decanting from 
Hammersmith Town Hall not funded corporately

182 182 182 182 
Alternative venues being sought to retain repeat custom (but limited 
opportunities expected). Provision made from the Civic Campus 
reserve to fund any losses compared to budget.

Resident Services Resident Services 
Complaints staffing unable to be contained within budget 
(one unfunded post)

70 70 70 70 
Review staffing structure and/or get contribution from other 
departments for this vital council-wide service.

Resident Services Resident Services Delayed existing savings not achieved 741 371 0 0 
Resident Access programme progressing as planned. Phasing and 
confirmation of expected benefits underway.

Resident Services Resident Services Continuation of Collection Fund overspend 99 99 99 99 

The Environment Department Total 2,731 2,318 1,947 1,548                                                                                             -   

Risk

P
age 35



Appendix 2

Finance and Governance Risk/Challenges

Department & Division Short Description of Risk
2020/21 
Value 

(£000's)

2021/22  
Value 

(£000's)

2022/23 
Value 

(£000's)

2023/24 
Value 

(£000's)
Mitigation

Finance and Governance

IT Services Inflationary pressure for long term contracts.            40            50            60            70 Renegotiations of existing contracts and review of applications in use

Legal & Governance
Existing budget pressures in elections due to 
reduction of grant funding towards Individual Electoral 
Registration.

           60            60            60            60 

Commercial
Contract management savings – risk that activity plan 
to be drafted after resource is .employed does not 
meet the MTFS target.

      1,500       1,500       1,500       1,500 

Finance and Governance Total 1,600 1,610 1,620 1,630 

Public Service Reform (PSR) Risk/Challenges

Department & Division Short Description of Risk
2020/21 
Value 

(£000's)

2021/22  
Value 

(£000's)

2022/23 
Value 

(£000's)

2023/24 
Value 

(£000's)
Mitigation

PSR
Staffing Existing staffing pressures. 325 325 325 325 Review to be undertaken and business case established.
Communications Cessation of HRA funding. 97 97 97 97 Corporate discussion to be held around HRA recharges and SLAs.

PSR Total 422 422 422 422 

Risk

Risk

P
age 36



Appendix 2

The Economy Department Risk/Challenges

Department & Division Short Description of Risk
2020/21 
Value 

(£000's)

2021/22  
Value 

(£000's)

2022/23 
Value 

(£000's)

2023/24 
Value 

(£000's)
Mitigation

Temporary Accommodation Overall Benefit Cap          120          120          120          120 

Support to enable residents to gain exemption 
from the Benefits Cap through: training and 
qualifying employment; disablility/carers benefit 
where possible; resettlement into affordable 
housing.

Temporary Accommodation Direct Payments (Universal Credit)            42            42            42            42 

The service works closely with the DWP, 
residents, colleagues and the voluntary sector 
to ensure Universal Credit claims are assessed 
correctly and paid to the Council, or in 
facilitating a switch-back to Housing Benefit 
(HB) to allow more control over claims.

Temporary Accommodation
Increase in the number of households in Temporary 
Accommodation - based on current forecast

  -             317          630          943 

Temporary Accommodation Large families in B&B          122          136          149          163 

Temporary Accommodation

Loss of Temporary Accommodation Management Fee on Housing 
Benefit Subsidy - the Flexible Homelessness Support Grant will be 
received in 2020/21 but Government has not confirmed whether 
funding will be available from 2021/22 onwards.

  -          2,072       2,205       2,338 

Temporary Accommodation
Inflationary pressures on Temporary Accommodation landlord 
costs, based on an extra 1.5% rental inflation

         386          648          913       1,182 

Temporary Accommodation
Increase in the number of households in Temporary 
Accommodation - extra 100 each year above current forecast

         563       1,125       1,688       2,250 

Temporary Accommodation
Homelessness Reduction Act - increase in households in 
temporary accommodation - extra 70 each year

         394          788       1,182       1,575 

Temporary Accommodation
Direct Lettings Cost Avoidance payments - risk in future years 
(Cost Avoidance payments were previously funded from the 
Temporary Accommodation earmarked reserve prior to 2019/20)

         600          600          600          600 

Economic Development
Funding for key management posts is dependent on an 
organisational restructure. This is currently in the consultation 
process.

           64   -      -      -    
The restructure is currently in the consultation 
stage and is expected to mitigate the salaries 
risk once this is implemented.

Economic Development Economic Develepoment funding       1,600       1,600       1,600   -    

The Head of Economic Development is in 
process of preparing a Cabinet report for 
approval requesting Section 106 funding for 
the service. 

Planning
There is a risk that the costs of current and future work in producing 
Supplementary Planning Documents will exceed the budgets and 
funding available.

           50            50            50            50 

Planning

In recent years, the cost of judicial reviews and major planning 
appeals has been met from earmarked reserves but these funds 
are now exhausted and therefore, there is an ongoing risk of an 
overspend against the budget. 

         300          300          300          300 

The Economy Department

Risk

P
age 37



Appendix 2

Department & Division Short Description of Risk
2020/21 
Value 

(£000's)

2021/22  
Value 

(£000's)

2022/23 
Value 

(£000's)

2023/24 
Value 

(£000's)
Mitigation

The Economy Department

Risk

Planning

The inherent volatility of planning income means it is difficult to 
predict future income expectations due to several factors including:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
• Changes to the statutory charging schedule
• Economic factors such as the impact on planning activity of Brexit
• Changes in legislation e.g. permitted development rights, 
Planning Performance Agreement regulation
• Changes to pre-application charging fees and Planning 
Performance Agreement templates
• Local and wider market conditions
• Availability of development sites in the borough
• Developers by-passing the pre-application process as it is not 
compulsory
• Reduced developer funding of Planning Performance Agreements
• Government schemes to encourage house building, including 
grant schemes
• Developers’ responding to current and pipeline housing supply in 
borough (they don’t want to flood the local market)
•  Adverse weather conditions

      1,400       1,400       1,400       1,400 

Total       5,641       9,198     10,879     10,963 

P
age 38



Appendix 2

Council Wide Risk/Challenges

Department & Division Short Description of Risk
2020/21 Value 

(£000's)

2021/22  
Value 

(£000's)

2022/23 
Value 

(£000's)

2023/24 
Value 

(£000's)
Mitigation

Council Wide Budget Risks

Centrally Managed Budgets Contract Inflation (1% above budget)                  1,250            1,250            1,250       1,250 Contract management and negotiation

Centrally Managed Budgets Pay inflation (1% above budget)                     750               750               750          750 Staffing review

Council Wide Total 2,000 1,250 1,250 1,250 

Overall Risk 18,549 30,729 32,049 31,744

Risk

P
age 39



Appendix 3 
DRAFT 
Budget 2020/21 Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
Overview and summary 
 

1. The Council is obliged to set a balanced budget and Council Tax charge in 

accordance with the Local Government Finance Act 1992. The purpose of this EIA is 

to assess the main items in the budget that will be proposed to Full Council on 26 

February 2020. 

 

2. For 2020/21, a balanced budget is proposed based on investment in key priorities, 

efficiency savings and strengthening financial resilience. On the basis of that budget, 

the Council proposes a 1.99% rise in Council Tax and the application of the 

Government modelled 2% adult social care precept. Further information is set out in 

the accompanying report. 

 

3. A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, comply with the requirements 

of the Equality Act 2010 and in particular section 149, the Public Sector Equality 

Duty (“PSED”). This Equalities Impact Assessment (“EIA”) is intended to assist the 

Council in demonstrating its fulfilment of its PSED. It assesses, as far as is possible 

on the information currently available, the equality impact of the budget through initial 

equality impact assessment of proposals. The requirements of the PSED and case 

law principles are explained in the Legal Implications section of the report to Full 

Council. The Equality Implications section of that report is informed by this analysis. 

Methodology 
 

4. The analysis looks at the impact of Council Tax and Social Care Precept proposals 

and, secondly, at the budget on which that decision is based. Initial equality impact 

assessments have been undertaken of all the proposals at this stage, with a full 

Equality Impact Assessment undertaken for those where potential adverse impact 

has been identified. Equality Impact Assessment is an ongoing process and further 

assessment will be undertaken of policy decisions as appropriate. This will happen 

throughout 2020/21 as part of the Council's decision-making process and changes 

will be made where appropriate. 

 

5. The aim in this document is to identify the elements of the budget that may have an 

adverse or positive impact on any protected group so that these can be taken into 

account by the Council when taking a final decision on the budget and the level of 

Council Tax. Where this is possible, mitigating measures are identified at the 

appropriate point in this document. 

Summary of impact of the proposed budget 
 
Council Tax increase and applying social care precept 
 

Page 40



6. A 1.99% increase in Council Tax is proposed and the application of the Government 

modelled 2% adult social care precept. This will take Band D Council Tax from 

£762.02 to £792.42. Council tax is one aspect of local government funding where the 

Council has some discretion to raise additional funds. However, there are Council 

Tax rules in place that limit the extent of any Council Tax increases before a 

referendum is required. The limit for 2020/21 is 1.99% (not including the government 

modelled 2% adult social care precept) and so a referendum is not required for 

Hammersmith and Fulham Council. 

 

7. By increasing Council tax, the Council is able to prevent reductions in services to 

local residents and in so doing can continue to mitigate against adverse impacts 

facing individual households. 

 

8. The percentage increase will be applied to all bands of Council Tax, as required by 

law. This will impact on all residents who are eligible to pay Council Tax. The 

average increase in cost per week on a Band D property is £0.58. Since Council Tax 

is applicable to all properties it is not considered that the increase targets any one 

particular group; rather it is an increase that is applied across the board. At the same 

time because the increase is applied to all properties it is not possible to exempt any 

particular group.  

 

9. The impact of Council Tax could be mitigated through the Local Council Tax Support 

scheme and other exemptions and discounts.  

Council Tax Exemptions and Discounts 
 

10. Some properties are exempt, or qualify for a discount, from council tax. The different 

classes of exemptions/discounts are listed below. 

 

Occupied Properties with only the following residents: 

a. full time students (they must complete an application form and return it to us 

with a council tax certificate from their place of study);  

b. severely mentally impaired people;  

c. a foreign diplomat who would normally have to pay Council Tax;  

d. people who are under 18;  

e. members of a visiting force who would normally have to pay Council Tax;  

f. elderly or disabled relatives of a family who live in the main property, in certain 

annexes and self-contained accommodation. 

 

If there is only one other resident in the property who does not fall into one of the 

above categories, then the property will receive a 25% discount rather than be 

exempt.  If there are more than two such residents, then the property will neither be 

exempt nor receive a discount. 

  

Unoccupied properties  

g. owned by a charity are exempt for up to six months;  

h. empty due to resident receiving care in a hospital or home elsewhere;  

Page 41



i. empty as resident has been sent to prison;  

j. empty as resident has moved to care for someone else;  

k. empty awaiting probate and for six months after probate is granted;  

l. has been repossessed;  

m. is the responsibility of a bankrupt's trustee;  

n. is waiting for a minister of religion to move in,    

o. empty by a student whose term-time address is elsewhere,  

p. empty because it is against the law to live there, including from 1st April 2007 

where a planning condition prevents occupation;  

q. empty as it forms part of another property and may not be let separately.  

 

Pitch or mooring  

r. that doesn't have a caravan or boat on it is also exempt. 

 

11. From 2017/18 the Council has also provided discounts for care leavers up to the age 

of 25. 

 

12. Those who feel they are entitled to an exemption are encouraged to contact the 

Council and information on how to do that is provided by the Council when Council 

Tax Bills are issued. Support for people struggling with their Council Tax Bill is also 

offered through Advice Centres. 

 

13. The liability for Council Tax is summarised below: 

Total dwellings in the borough 90,500 

Reductions:  

Exemptions (mainly students, includes care leavers) (4,000) 

Council tax support claimants (elderly & working age on low 

income) 

(11,400) 

Single person discount (25% discount) (27,500) 

Dwellings liable for 100% of Council tax (53%) 47,600 

 

14. Data on the Local Council Tax Support Scheme identifies that approximately 55% 

are female (higher than the proportion of females in the borough population as a 

whole, which was 51.3% according to the 2011 Census). Pensioners are also 

disproportionately represented (35% of LCTS claimants, but only 9% of Borough 

residents). Based on ONS data on low income groups, it is also likely that disabled 

residents, ethnic minority groups, women on maternity leave, single parents (who are 

normally women) and families with young children are likely to be disproportionally 

represented. 

 

Social Care Savings Proposals  

Page 42



 
SC1 - Better demand management and choice from acute hospitals - £1.5m 

15. This business case is about reviewing residents sooner after discharge to avoid 

them continuing with a larger support package than is needed and thus becoming 

dependent on it. The first proposal is around the role of social care to support 

residents upon leaving hospital to regain as much mobility and confidence (and 

therefore independence) as possible.  

 

16. For every day someone is in a hospital bed, they lose mobility. When someone who 

previously had low level support needs is discharged home after a significant stay in 

hospital, they may require more support (in the short term) than when they entered. 

Similarly, residents who before a period in hospital needed no support may now 

require it. This support is put in place before a resident leaves the hospital, but once 

home and in a familiar environment, residents generally improve rapidly over the 

next few weeks. Social care would continue to fund the customer fund following a 

review of care needs which would be an appropriate level of service. 

 

17. The second part of the business case relates to making better use of NHS and other 

funding streams where appropriate, including Continuing Health Care (CHC) and 

Funded Nursing Care (FNC). This work has already begun and seen some recent 

successes. The second proposal around this is about ensuring the right amount of 

support is in place for the right amount of time – preventing over-provision and 

ensuring that the optimum funding streams are being utilised. Health would fund the 

services required for the customer, following a continuing healthcare assessment.  

 

18. This proposal has a neutral equalities impact. 

 
SC2 – Home Care – Improve contract management and payment of no replies and 

cancellations of home care packages - £250,000 

19. There are two parts to this proposal – working with residents and working with home 

care providers. 

 

20. H&F is the only local authority in the country which provides a home care service 

which is free at the point of need rather than means-tested. If a carer visits a resident 

and they are not there or a resident cancels a visit with less than 24 hours’ notice, 

H&F are still liable to pay the home care provider for this visit. This business case is 

about reducing the number of no replies and cancellations which have a significant 

cost, both financially and in staff time (as where there is no reply, staff will work until 

they are able to locate the resident to ensure their safety).  

 

21. Frequent failed visits may indicate that something is not working – a resident may no 

longer want the support and so is turning a carer away or the support may be being 

provided at a time which does not fit with their lifestyle. By reviewing such residents, 

social care has started to make significant progress in this area. Staff have also been 

encouraging residents to cancel or rearrange not-needed visits (for example due to a 

GP appointment) as soon as possible.  

Page 43



 

22. As with SC1, it is about ensuring the right sized package for a resident and a service 

which works for them. It may be that a resident’s support package is reduced as a 

result of this work, this will only be done with their agreement.  

 

23. The second part of the proposal relates to home care providers. When a carer visits 

a resident, they are required to clock in and clock out using electronic monitoring. 

Increased staffing has led to greater scrutiny of provider behaviour, challenging 

coding and withholding payments where warranted.  

 

24. This proposal has a neutral equalities impact. 

 
SC3 – Ongoing review of staffing - £200,000 in 2021/22 

25. Over the last two years, recruitment of qualified social workers and occupational 

therapists has been difficult, resulting in more expensive agency staff and an 

increasing workforce budget. Part one of the work has been to review the Council’s 

job descriptions, pay and terms & conditions compared to other local authorities. By 

improving the offer, the Council should be able to attract more workers to these 

roles.  The department is also reviewing our functions to reduce the number of 

qualified workers needed as many tasks can be undertaken by other roles e.g. 

independent living assessors.  

 

26. This proposal relates to better resourcing and deployment of staff. The department 

will continue to be measured by the same resident-focussed performance measures 

e.g. percentage residents receiving a steady home care package being reviewed 

every 12 months. Residents will not experience a decline in service. 

 

27. This proposal has a neutral equalities impact. 

 
SC4 – Transport - £100,000 

28. This proposal seeks to review the transport model for the Options Day Service – 

working with residents and their families to co-produce transport options which 

respect their individual circumstances and promote independent living. 

 

29. The Options Day Service is for residents with moderate to complex Learning 

Disability support needs. It has repeatedly received an ‘Outstanding’ inspection 

rating by CQC for its goal-orientated work to make meaningful progress and improve 

resident independence.   The service has gone from strength to strength in the past 

few years, creating partnerships with local schools and a social enterprise to name 

but two developments. The transport options however remain fairly traditional, with 

residents being collected from their home/place of residence via mini-bus and taken 

to the centre. Depending on where they live on the route, some residents may spend 

a long time on the bus while others are collected. 

 

30. This proposal involves staff working with people who use the Day Service, using the 

same goal-orientated approach as elsewhere in the service to travel as 

Page 44



independently as possible. For some, this may be completely independently, for 

others this may involve support or travel in a small group with friends.  

 

31. Changes will be made working with residents and their families to design the options, 

appreciating individual circumstances and choices throughout. No resident will be 

prevented from accessing the centre through these transport changes. 

 

32. As the Options Day Service is for residents with Learning Disabilities, this proposal 

will have a disproportionate impact on a protected characteristic. However, as 

previously stated, the proposed changes will not prevent anyone from accessing the 

Options Day Service and thus there is a neutral impact.  Transport reviews have 

featured in previous years budgets for different parts of the service and have been 

successfully delivered.  

 

33. This proposal has a neutral equalities impact. 

 
SC5 – Better mental health care and support services for new and existing demand - 

£165,000 

34. An extensive programme of reviewing the mental health pathways involving 

colleagues from commissioning, operations, clinical teams, housing and IMPOWER 

has taken place over the last year.  

 

35. The programme has identified that although there is a good current mental health 

supported housing system in place, there are systemic issues which need to be 

addressed. Such accommodation should never be a permanent solution, but there is 

a lack of move on from services with an estimated 20-30 residents, who could with 

the right support, move from expensive out-of-borough residential placements back 

into local supported accommodation. Gradually stepping down their support would 

improve their independence and returning in-borough would return them to familiar 

networks, families and community mental health services. Out-of-borough 

placements are also generally more expensive and more difficult for H&F to monitor 

the quality of.  

 

36. Moves would be managed using a strengths-based, co-production approach to 

mitigate against any impact. As part of co-production we will work with residents and 

their family members to prepare an appropriate care setting. Some residents have 

lived in provision for many years and will require close working with them and their 

families to manage the transition in a phased manner, which will ensure there is no 

adverse impact upon them. Modest savings are being planned due to spending on 

extra support during transition.  

 

37. This proposal will have a neutral equalities impact.  

 
SC6 – Continued improvement of transitions work - £200,000 

38. A new purpose-built property for residents with learning disabilities is due to 

complete in September 2020. This property, W12 Emlyn Gardens, will contain eight 

Page 45



individual specialist flats keeping residents local to the community they grew up in, 

their networks, families and carers. This is the preferred service model of local 

residents.  

 

39. The new development is purpose-built for a mixture of young people transitioning 

into adult services and adult residents currently placed out-of-borough. By creating 

new in-borough provision, H&F can improve its offer to residents, enable them to 

stay close to home and avoid expensive out-of-borough placements. 18 residents 

have been identified as being suitable to move into the new properties as part of this 

project. The final list will be created nearer the time by working closely with 

residents. 

 

40. This proposal has a neutral equalities impact. 

 
SC7 – Changing the way we approach carrying out assessments using a co-

production approach – £800,000 in 2021/22 

41. A strengths-based review system has recently been set up, refocussing 

conversations from a deficit model (what can’t you do), to a strengths-based one 

(what can you do) and building on those skills. This includes looking at personal 

abilities, skills and knowledge; social networks and community resources/social 

capital (including benefits maximisation and applying for NHS funding where 

appropriate).  

 

42. A co-production approach means working more collaboratively with residents, 

promoting opportunities for residents to be co-producers of services and support 

rather than solely consumers of services. This work is still in the early stages and 

changes in culture and practice take time, though there have been some initial 

successes resulting in savings of £200,000 in 2019/20.  A staff conference and 

follow-up training sessions are being held to embed the principles. This proposal is 

about realigning care packages based on needs. There will therefore be no reduction 

in service. 

 

43. This proposal has a neutral equalities impact. 

 
SC8 – Supply and contract management - £250,000 

44. Social Care currently commissions three separate floating support contracts which 

are resulting in overlap and duplication. Floating support is about supporting 

individuals in a crisis; typically relating to tenancy issues. Floating support also 

provides drop-in sessions for residents; typically, this will involve help with 

correspondence.  

 

45. Historically, parts of these services have been underutilised, particularly the services 

for residents over 55. This proposal sees the three contracts merged into one to 

make efficiency savings. Commissioning will also work to create a more developed 

offer which is better targeted and supports individuals to build resilience, reducing 

the frequency and severity of crises and resulting in associated savings.  

Page 46



 

46. A full EIA will be produced in line with the procurement timescale during the next 

financial year. expected in all but potentially one area – over 55s as it will represent a 

decrease in their bespoke service. However, the general offer will continue to be 

available for them and there are other alternative services which serve very similar 

functions that existing clients can be signposted to; except in all but potentially one 

area – over 55s as it will represent a decrease in their bespoke service. However, 

the general offer will continue to be available for them and there are other alternative 

services which serve very similar functions that existing clients can be signposted to. 

 

47. This proposal has a neutral equalities impact. 

 
SC9 – Introduce technology in how we work with residents - £200,000 in 2021/22 

48. The department is seeking to utilise new technologies and robotics in social care. 

This is not about replacing care workers with robots but putting aids into a resident’s 

home to help them to better support themselves – for example, using technology to 

remind a resident to take their medication or that they haven’t drunk anything that 

afternoon - which helps them to stay well and reducing non-elective admissions. 

Testing of equipment is beginning, working closely with residents. 

 

49. This proposal seeks to improve quality of life. Savings will come from increasing a 

resident’s independence so they need less formal support.  

 

50. This proposal has a neutral equalities impact. 

 
Public Health Savings Proposals 

 
PH1 – Savings and procurement of new model for health visiting and school nursing 
– £220,000 

51. ‘0-19’ is currently delivered by Central London Community Healthcare (CLCH) on a 

two-year contract 1 April 19 – 31 March 21. A reduction in funding for year two has 

been negotiated and agreed with the provider. The saving is being achieved through 

a collaborative service streamlining and redesign of some areas. The savings are 

primarily contractual – residents will not notice a change in service and therefore the 

equalities impact is neutral. 

 

52. There is one area which may be decommissioned – a specific Family Nurse 

Partnership (FNP) which provides support for pregnant teenagers.   The teenage 

pregnancy rate halved in H&F between 2009 and 2015, at which point there were 41 

conceptions to women under the age of 18. This service is therefore being under-

utilised and because of its peer support nature, without sufficient numbers this 

service is less effective.  

 

53. A general service for mothers is already provided which is of good quality and 

sufficient capacity to expand to provide a service for young mothers. Therefore, a 

Page 47



better service can be provided for less by providing focussed, specialist support for 

young parents through existing contracts.  

 

54. This part of the proposal will disproportionately impact on three protected 

characteristics because the service is for women (sex), who are under 18 (age) and 

pregnant (pregnancy/maternity), however a high-quality support service for this 

group will still exist and therefore the overall equalities implication is neutral.  

 

55. This proposal has a neutral equalities impact. 

PH2 – Core drug and alcohol services – £280,000 in 2021/22 
56. Public health currently commissions three separate drug and alcohol services for 

adults and young people. The current contracts come to an end on 31 March 2021. 

Although this proposal is for savings in 2021/22, and thus in its infancy, it is 

proposed that these three contracts be combined into one, with efficiency savings 

made through re-procurement and a reduction in associated management costs. 

This saving will be worked up in more detail as part of next year’s budget. 

 

57. Savings are being made through efficiencies rather than reductions in front line 

services.   

 

58. This proposal has a neutral equalities impact. 

PH3 – Enhanced access to contraceptive and screening services - £150,000 
59. Hammersmith & Fulham provides a high number of sexual health, screening and 

contraception services, including SASH (Support and Advice on Sexual Health) 

GUM (Genito Urinary Medicine), SHL (Sexual Health London), LARC (Long-Acting 

Reversible Contraception), GP services and more. 

 

60. On 30 March 2020, a contract for screening and contraception with CNWL (Central 

North West London NHS Trust) will end. This service provides a comprehensive 

range of contraceptive methods, STI testing, screening and treatment for 

uncomplicated infections.  It is proposed that this contract is not extended or 

recommissioned. Residents have been choosing to go elsewhere, using other 

services in the borough which has resulted in this service being under-utilised and 

thus not cost effective. Furthermore, if this service is continued, the contract cost 

would significantly increase as other boroughs have left the partnership for similar 

reasons.  

 

61. Removing this service will have a neutral equalities impact, as there are sufficient 

services elsewhere. Wait times for other services will continue to be closely 

monitored to ensure sufficient coverage.  

 

62. This proposal has a neutral equalities impact. 

 
PH 4 – Review of Social Care & Public Health Commissioning - £60,000 

Page 48



63. The proposal is to bring Social Care and Public Health Commissioning under one 

line management structure which would mean an improved and strengthened shared 

programme of work.  The intention is to provide a co-produced and greater focussed 

strategy on delivering commission-led savings. 

 

64. The proposal has a neutral equalities impact for both residents and staff. 

Children’s Services Savings Proposals 

CHS 1 – Alternative model for care leaver housing - £200,000 
65. The Care Leaver accommodation programme proposes a new, cross departmental 

approach to increasing the supply of local supported accommodation for young 

people leaving care.  

 

66. The key objectives of the programme are to reduce the overspend within Children’s 

Services where placements for young people through framework or spot purchasing 

are significantly higher than locally commissioned provision, whilst simultaneously 

improving outcomes for young people through quality housing and closer links to 

family and community support networks.   

 

67. It is believed that this proposal has a neutral impact on those with protected 

characteristics. The programme aims to increase supply of local quality housing 

provision for vulnerable young people. One element of the programme will be to 

identify young people currently placed in higher cost out of borough placements that 

are suitable and ready to be transferred to in-borough accommodation where 

accommodation-based support will continue to be provided. The savings proposals 

offer a form of service continuity where support will continue to be provided to 

vulnerable children.  

 

68. It is not anticipated that there will be any direct negative equality implications for 

protected groups at this stage.  

CHS 2 – Travel Care & Support - £129,000 
69. The Travel Care and Support Team saving encompasses several initiatives that 

largely form part of the business as usual processes and are permitted within the 

existing policy arrangements: 

 

 Independent travel training promotes members manifesto pledge of improving 

children’s chances in life by promoting independence, creates opportunities as 

young people prepare for adulthood by allowing access to work and reduces risks 

of loneliness by improving access to the community.  

 

 Opportunities for the use of shared transport arrangements between boroughs to 

promote social benefits of shared transport as well as shared efficiencies.  

 

 A review of vehicle types for students, consider moving into either a single 

occupancy or shared occupancy taxi to reduce the cost of their transport (as paid 

Page 49



by mileage as opposed to seat) as well as added benefits around reduced travel 

times.  

 

 A personal travel budget offer provides parents with the flexibility to tailor their 

own solution to meet their child’s needs and promotes the H&F vision of doing 

things with residents rather than to them. 

 

 

70. It is believed that the proposals have a neutral impact on those with protected 

characteristics. 

 

71. The proposal forms part of the business as usual actions for the service and is 

compatible with the existing Home to School transport policy. The proposals are 

applicable across the cohort and service users will be assessed on a risk and need 

basis to ensure individuals are not disadvantaged. 

CHS 3 – Staffing Efficiencies - £250,000 
72. This saving is to be met against a budget of c£22.5m and will be delivered as staffing 

efficiency across the department with no service impact expected. 

CHS 4 – Disabled Children Care packages, direct payments and residential 
placements - £257,000 

73. Improvements in management and frontline delivery of short breaks will reduce 

expenditure whilst protecting direct services to disabled children. Proposals will have 

a neutral impact on those with protected characteristics, while the services in 

question are delivered for disabled children who clearly have protected 

characteristics, none of the actions will deliver reduction in services to either the 

group as a whole or to any individual child.   

 

74. An increased focus on early intervention and eligibility for services will ensure 

services are targeted to prevent escalation of need. Developments will deliver 

improved services which will ensure that support remains available for disabled 

children and their families as required, further improved use of local services and 

development of new services such as the behaviour outreach service will see 

improved outcomes.   

 

75. All policies and service changes relating to short breaks are co-produced with 

parents of disabled children to ensure the group are confident that the policies meet 

need and are fair and equitable. 

 

Children’s Services Investment Proposals 
 

CHSG 1 – Family Services Placements & Client costs - £4.118m 
76. Growth request to align budget with the demand led growth in numbers that have 

caused a cost pressure on the Looked After Children and Care Leavers budgets.  

 

77. The proposal will have a neutral impact as it results in no change in service offered. 

Page 50



CHSG 2 – Short Breaks and Disabled Children Packages - £513,000 
78. Growth request to align budget with the demand led growth in numbers that have 

caused a cost pressure on the Disabled Children’s residential, spot purchased care 

packages and direct payments budgets.  

 

79. The proposal will have a neutral impact as it results in no change in service offered.  

CHSG3 – Travel Care & Support - £886,000 
80. Growth request to partially mitigate pressure caused by the demand led growth in 

numbers that have caused a cost pressure on the Travel Care and Support.  

 

81. The proposal will have a neutral equalities impact as it results in no change in 

service offered.  

 
Public Services Reform Proposals 

 
PSR 1 - Review of services - staffing and efficiencies - £255,000 saving for 2020/21. 
 
82. Complete a review of all PSR services with view to restructuring services to 

realise efficiencies. It is believed that this proposal has a neutral impact on those 

with protected characteristics for the following reasons: 

 

83. Savings will be secured through the use of vacancies arising from staff turnover - 
with some posts being deleted whilst others are replaced with lower graded 
posts. It is not expected that there will be any compulsory redundancies. 

 
84. There will be a neutral impact on staff with protected characteristics. Where there 

are staff changes leading to savings, Equality Impact Assessments are carried 
out as part of the reorganisation process. 

 
Finance & Governance Savings 
 
FGO 2 – Virtual Desktop Infrastructure - £200,000  

85. The Virtual Desktop Infrastructure (VDI) service was delivered through the Desktop 

contract.  The VDI contract was extended in November 2019 due to commitments on 

infrastructure and licensing and to ensure service continuity whilst we migrate to the 

new desktop strategy. This contract has now ended. 

 

86. This proposal has a neutral equalities impact. 

FGO 3 - Contract Review and Application consolidation - £100,000 
87. The proposal is to conduct a systematic review of all Line of business application 

contracts used throughout the council with the aim of reducing cost through 

renegotiation.  It is believed that this proposal has a neutral impact on those with 

protected characteristics as the budget proposal focusses on managing and 

procuring contracts more effectively and efficiencies relating to back office staff and 

functions.  

 

Page 51



88. As such there are no adverse equality implications for any particular groups, 

residents and employees alike, with protected characteristics. 

FGO 5 – External Audit Fees – £10,000 
89. The proposal is to reduce budget in line with expected audit fees. 

 

90. It is believed that this proposal has a neutral impact on those with protected 

characteristics as the reduction of audit budgets has no direct impact on residents or 

employees.  

FGO 6 - Review of Finance function - £100,000 saving in 2020/21 
91. A review of functions and processes to align with the new system, plus self-service 

and automation strategies.  It is not expected that there will be any compulsory 

redundancies or direct impact on any residents or employees. 

 

92. It is believed that this proposal has a neutral impact on those with protected 

characteristics as savings will be generated from the use of vacancies arising from 

staff turnover, reviewing functions and processes to improve productivity and 

automation.  

FGO 7 - Review of NNDR - £200,000 
93. A review of previous years’ NNDR outturn position could deliver a saving of £200k 

against budget. 

 

94. Provision of service does not vary according to any particular group with protected 

characteristics and accordingly there is a neutral impact on those with protected 

characteristics.  

FGO 8 - Business Rates Income - £1.9m 
95. The proposal is to work closely with the London Pool to deliver additional benefits for 

LBHF.  The initial estimated one-off benefit for 2020/21 is £1.9m. 

 

96. This proposal has a neutral impact on those with protected characteristics as the 

one-off income from business rates has no direct impact on residents or employees. 

FGO 9 - Energy efficiency works - £20,000  
97. The proposal is to review and work to invest in utilities upgrades across the Council's 

civic accommodation portfolio to provide energy efficient solutions 

 

98. It is believed that this proposal has a neutral impact on those with protected 

characteristics as provision of energy efficient solutions across the civic 

accommodation portfolio will not have any direct impact on residents or employees. 

FGO 10 - Triennial valuation of Pension Fund - £2.09m  
99. The triennial valuation of Pension Fund as a result of the success of the investment 

strategy has led to an improved funding position. This is likely to lead to a reduction 

in the level of General Fund contributions payable by the Council. 

 

Page 52



100. This proposal will have a neutral impact on those with protected characteristics as 

the pension benefits are unchanged. 

Economy Savings 
 

ECO 1 - Securing longer-term private sector accommodation in the place of 
temporary accommodation while residents wait on the social housing register- 
£196,000 

101. This will enable households to be moved into more suitable accommodation sooner, 

reducing reliance on private landlords for TA use and reducing expenditure. This 

change will not impact the place of residents on the social housing register. 

 

102. It is believed that this proposal has a neutral impact on those with protected 

characteristics. 

ECO 2 - Reduction in Temporary Accommodation (TA) - £115,000 
103. This will enable households to be moved into more suitable accommodation, 

reducing reliance on private landlords for TA use and reducing expenditure. 
 

104. It is believed that this proposal has a neutral impact on those with protected 

characteristics. 

ECO 3 - Improved debt management - £286,000 
105. This will reduce arrears, managing debt and reducing financial stress on households 

in TA.  Officers will work with households to manage all debt and support households 

when financial difficulties arise.   

 

106. It is believed that this proposal has a neutral impact on those with protected 

characteristics. 

ECO 4 - Consolidation of management & workforce and reduction in the use of 
agency staff - £196,000 

107. This is the beginning of a phased savings delivery programme. It will enable service 

transformation, delivering a more streamlined, focussed service to residents. 

 

108. It is believed that this proposal has a neutral impact on those with protected 

characteristics as the service is in the process of implementing an approved 

restructure that will reduce agency staff and enable overall staffing.    

ECO 5 - Improved and digitalised front door and assessment pathway 

£180,000 in 2022/23 
109. The service has implemented digitalisation including on-line application forms and 

information, self-service processes at the customer service centre.  This has reduced 

footfall and contributed to more streamlined services.  On-going digitalisation will 

achieve the forecasted savings as part of on-going service transformation, making 

information more accessible to households at all times – including outside of office 

hours. 

Page 53



 

110. It is believed that this proposal has a neutral impact on those with protected 

characteristics. 

ECO 6 - Review and restructure of Economic Development - £61,000 

111. This relates to a review of the structure of the Economic Development service.  

 

112. Wherever possible, any reduction in establishment will be absorbed through natural 

wastage and existing vacancies. A full Equality Impact Assessment will be carried 

out as part of the reorganisation process.   

 

113. The proposals are expected to have a neutral impact on those with protected 

characteristics.  

 
Environment Savings 
 
EN 1 - Intelligent Street Lighting Energy Management - £15,000  

114. Install sensors on street lighting (street lamps, illuminated signs and bollards) in 

order to remotely control hours and levels of illumination.  Requires circa £1.1m of 

one-off investment (invest to save initiative).   

 

115. Levels of illumination are driven by the preference of local residents (i.e. in 

accordance with levels of natural daylight) and does not vary according to any 

particular group with protected characteristics. 

 

116. It is believed that this proposal has a neutral impact on those with protected 

characteristics.   

EN 2 - New Leisure Contract - £174,000  
117. Increased income from the new Leisure Contract.  Capital investment in the sports 

facilities at Lillie Road Fitness Centre and Phoenix Leisure Centre is expected to 

increase use of the facilities and therefore increase the amount of income generated 

by the contractor (of which the council gets a share).  This proposal requires one-off 

investment of £1.5m. 

   

118. The proposal has a neutral impact on those with protected characteristics as the 

facilities are public leisure facilities available for all to use (charged for at the point of 

use).   

EN 3 - Maximise Pest Control Income - £35,000  
119. The Pest Control service is a paid for service available to the wider public and 

businesses.  Provision of the service does not vary according to any particular group 

with protected characteristics.   

 

120. This proposal has a neutral impact on those with protected characteristics.  

Page 54



Summary on impact on the budget 
 

Social Care & Public Health 
121. The 2020/21 proposals are detailed in this report. Some reference is made to 

savings proposals for 2021/22 where known.  The proposals generally centre around 

promoting independence, early intervention and bringing together contracts to 

reduce management costs.  These will be achieved without any anticipated adverse 

impact on people who use the services.  All of the proposals therefore have a neutral 

equalities impact. 

Children’s Services 
122. The savings proposals for these vital services to vulnerable children and young 

people will be delivered through promoting greater independence, more access to 

support within the community and increasing the number of in-borough placements. 

Together with a bigger emphasis on recoupment of unused direct payment balances, 

these proposals will realise cost savings whilst ensuring a neutral equalities impact.  

 

123. The requests for growth funding are primarily to align budgets with the demand led 

growth in numbers that services are experiencing. These proposals will ensure that 

we continue to achieve a neutral equalities impact for these children and young 

people. 

Public Services Reform 
124. The efficiencies proposed are related to departmental restructure and staffing. A 

review of all services will be conducted to inform the savings. A neutral equalities 

impact is anticipated.  

Finance and Governance 
125. The majority of savings from this department relate to managing and procuring 

contracts more effectively and efficiencies relating to back office staff and functions. 

As such there are no adverse equality implications for any particular groups, 

residents and employees alike, with protected characteristics. Where proposals 

affect staff, more detailed impact assessment will follow in line with the HR policy 

and procedure. 

Economy 
126. Key elements of the savings proposals from this department are associated with the 

reduction in the reliance on the use of costly Temporary Accommodation and 

providing households with debt management support, thereby reducing arrears. The 

duty discharge into the Private Rental Sector will enable the move of households into 

suitable accommodation sooner. Along with greater use of digital pathways to 

access services and information provision, these proposals are anticipated to result 

in a neutral equalities impact.  

Environment 
127. Savings will be realised through more intelligent street lighting and energy 

management (requiring an investment to save), more income anticipated the new 

Page 55



Leisure contract (increase in the council’s share following capital investment into 

facilities) and greater efforts to maximise income from Pest Control services. These 

proposals are expected to result in a neutral equalities impact.  

Conclusion 
 

128. Overall these collective budget proposals are likely to result in a neutral impact on 

groups with protected characteristics, under the Equality Act 2010. 

 

129. Council departments that have outlined efficiencies around staffing, these are 

centred around residents not experiencing any decline in services. They are 

anticipated to be realised through ‘natural wastage’ and the reduction in agency staff, 

avoiding compulsory redundancies. For any proposed restructure, detailed Equality 

Impact Assessments will be undertaken as part of the reorganisation process.  

 

130. As proposals are developed further, the assessment to date will be built upon and 

the impact will be assessed further and any mitigating measures identified, where 

appropriate, to prevent unreasonable impacts on any groups with protected 

characteristics.    

 

Page 56



Appendix 4

Social Care
Fees & Charges

2020/21

Page 57



Appendix 4

Fee Description
2019/20 

Charge (£)
2020/21 

Charge (£)
Proposed 

Variation (%)
Reason For Variation Not At Standard Rate 

Meals service charges £2.00 £2.00 0.0%

There is no change proposed in the flat rate contribution residents 
will pay towards the meal service for 2020/21. This will be the fifth 
year the meals charge will remain unchanged. However, the meals 
numbers are continuing to increase year on year reflecting the 
greater estimated income stream figure for 2020/21. The meals 
service is expecting 40,000 meals to be delivered at arate of £2.00 
per meal which with a projected income of £80,000.

1. Careline Alarm Gold Service (Pendant)

Private Clients ( Home owners & Private Sector Tenants) £23.14 £23.14 0.0%

Council Non-Sheltered or Housing Association (RSL) 
Tenants £17.21 £17.21 0.0%

2. Careline Alarm Silver Service (Pendant) - Monitoring 
Service only
Private Clients ( Home owners & Private Sector Tenants)

£16.12 £16.12 0.0%

Council Non-Sheltered or Housing Association (RSL) 
Tenants £10.30 £10.30 0.0%

3. Careline Alarm Gold Service (Pull cord) - Emergency 
Response & Monitoring Service

(A) Provided to Registered Social Landlord Sheltered 
Accommodations (RSL Financed)

£6.76 £6.76 0.0%

There is no change proposed in the Careline charge in 2020/21, 
which will be no change for four years. The Council is planning to 
co-produce the development of a different model which will 
encourage a partnership approach and a marketable service to 
residents.

P
age 58



Appendix 4

The Economy
Department

Fees & Charges

2020/21

Page 59



Appendix 4

Fee Description
2019/20 

Charge (£)
2020/21 

Charge (£)
Proposed 

Variation (%)
Reason For Variation Not At Standard Rate 

Private Sector Leasing

Private Sector Leasing Water Charges Varies Varies

Subject to 
water 
company 
increase,  
expected in 
January 2020

The charge is determined by the annual increase set by the water companies. 

Bed and Breakfast Temporary Accommodation

Since April 2012, the B&B rent threshold has been based on the January 2011 Local 
Housing Allowance (LHA). From April 2017, the B&B rent threshold will be based on 
the April 2015 LHA for benefit claims made through Universal Credit. The LHA varies 
according to changes in market rents, the location of the property and its bedroom 
size. This fee is the LHA threshold for one bedroom properties.

B & B Rent Single/Family (Average per week)
£215.20 as at 
1st October 

2018

£215.20 as at 
1st October 

2019

P
age 60



COST AND TREND DATA 1 OF 13 APPENDIX  5

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
£m £m £m £m £m

Base Budget 164.4 160.4 155.0 151.8 154.4
Contract & Pay Inflation 3.1 2.9 5.2 3.0 4.3
Growth/Investment 6.3 7.3 6.5 10.8 8.3
New Burdens 0.9
Increase in Council General Contingency 0.8
One-Off Contribution to reserves 5.0 2.9 0.6 0.0 7.2

179.7 173.5 167.3 165.6 175.0
New Homes Bonus and Other Revenue Grants -11.8 -12.7 -10.1 -15.2 -16.8
Revenue Support Grant -38.4 -29.5 0.0 0.0 -17.4
Business rates -57.1 -58.3 -80.4 -74.2 -57.2
Council Tax Income -53.9 -55.3 -56.7 -59.4 -62.5
Adult Social Care Precept 0.0 0.0 0.0 -1.2 -1.2

One-Off Resources/Developer Contributions -3.1 -3.0 -5.2 -5.3 -7.0
Budget Gap Before Savings 15.4 14.7 14.9 10.3 12.9

Budget Gap Before Savings - Trend Data

P
age 61



COST AND TREND DATA 2 OF 13 APPENDIX  5

5 Year Savings & Growth by Department

Saving by Department

 2016/17  
Savings 

 2017/18  
Savings 

 2018/19  
Savings 

 2019/20 
Savings 

 2020/21 
Proposed 
Savings 

£'m £'m £'m £'m £'m
Children's Services 3.227 1.870 2.086 1.300 0.836
Corporate Services  /Finance and Governance 3.175 1.956 2.909 1.900 4.620
Public Services Reform 0.000 2.000 2.000 0.800 0.255
The Economy Department 0.265 1.351 0.153 0.800 0.758
The Environment Department 2.819 0.832 1.963 2.400 0.974
Social Care 5.321 1.885 2.916 3.100 2.465
Council Wide 1.050 5.072 3.199 0.000 2.945
Total 15.857 14.966 15.226 10.300 12.853
Savings in Gross Resources 0.450 0.250 0.250 0.000 0.000
Net Savings 15.407 14.716 14.976 10.300 12.853

Growth by Department

 2016/17  
Growth 

 2017/18  
Growth 

 2018/19  
Growth 

 2019/20  
Growth 

 2020/21 
Proposed 
Growth 

£m £m £m £m £m
Children's Services 3.164 0.739 1.803 3.300 5.517
Corporate Services  /Finance and Governance 0.228 0.000 0.310 0.000 0.000
Public Services Reform 0.000 0.000 0.000 2.600 0.056
Economy 0.000 0.230 1.356 0.100 0.000
Environment 0.334 0.238 0.395 0.000 0.492
Social Care 1.475 4.413 1.249 3.600 0.767
Council Wide 1.140 1.648 1.409 1.200 1.500
Total 6.341 7.268 6.522 10.800 8.332

P
age 62



COST AND TREND DATA 3 OF 13 APPENDIX  5

5 Year Savings and Investment Categotisation 

Savings by Category

 2016/17  
Savings 

 2017/18  
Savings 

 2018/19  
Savings 

 2019/20  
Savings 

£m £m £m £m
Business Intelligence 0.624 0.625 0.410 0.000
Budget reduced in line with spend 0.000 0.335 0.165 1.900
Commercialisation / Income 1.919 2.873 3.147 0.600
Estate rationalisation 0.510 0.000 0.128 0.000
Outside investment secured (i.e. Section 106, NHS) 1.792 0.213 0.085 0.000
Prevention 2.560 0.626 1.608 0.000
Procurement / Commissioning 3.181 5.036 5.227 1.600
Service reconfiguration 3.290 2.724 3.066 4.100
Staffing  / Productivity 0.931 2.202 0.870 2.200
Pension triennial valuation 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Debt reduction and restructuring 1.050 0.000 0.000 0.000
Total 15.857 14.634 14.706 10.400

Investment by Category

 2016/17  
Investment 

 2017/18  
Investment 

 2018/19  
Investment 

 2019/20  
Investment 

£m £m £m £m
Government related 3.351 0.650 0.175 0.000
Other public bodies/ New grant 0.678 1.753 0.015 0.000
Increase in demand/demographic growth 0.486 1.390 1.663 6.300
Resident priority 1.425 2.034 1.836 1.000
Budget pressure 0.401 0.441 1.584 3.400
Living Wage pressures 0.000 0.000 1.249 0.000
Pension triennial valuation 0.000 1.000 0.000 0.000
Total 6.341 7.268 6.522 10.700

P
age 63



COST AND TREND DATA 4 OF 13 APPENDIX  5

 2019/20 
Controllable 
Budget 

 2020/21 
Proposed 
Savings 

 2020/21 
Proposed 
Savings 

 2020/21 
Proposed 
Investment 

 2020/21 
Proposed 
Investment 

£m £m % £m %
Children's Services 34.4              0.8 2% 5.5              16%
Corporate Services 5.3                
Finance & Governance 32.9              4.6 14%
Public Services Reform 15.7              0.3 2% 0.1              1%
Economy 11.7              0.8 7%
Environment Department 57.6              0.9 2% 0.5              1%
Social Care 47.5              2.5 5% 0.7              1%
Council Wide 2.9 1.5              

Total 12.8 8.3

The Controllable budget is expenditure less capital charges and internal recharges.
Adjustments are also made to exclude expenditure funded from specific grant or
where expenditure, such as on the freedom pass, is largely controlled by outside bodies.

Savings and Investment - Overview

P
age 64



COST AND TREND DATA 5 OF 13 APPENDIX  5

Department

Forecast 
Outturn 
Variance

Potential Value 
of Action Plan 

Mitigations

Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance Net 
of Mitigations

Gross 
overspend 

(underspend)
Net overspend 
(underspend)

Children’s Services 7.947 0.050 7.897 16.7% 16.6%
The Economy Department 1.193 0.351 0.842 14.1% 10.0%
The Environment Department 1.931 0.530 1.401 2.9% 2.1%
Controlled Parking Account (1.048) 0.000 (1.048) 3.8% 3.8%
Finance & Governance 1.748 0.150 1.598 129.8% 118.6%
Public Service Reform 0.880 0.000 0.880 29.1% 29.1%
Social Care 2.499 1.533 0.966 4.5% 1.7%
Centrally Managed Budgets (0.535) 0.000 (0.535) -3.1% -3.1%
Total 14.615 2.614 12.001 8.5% 7.0%
Balance of unapplied unallocated 
contingency

(2.552) 0.000 (2.552)

TOTAL 12.063 2.614 9.449 7.0% 5.5%

Summary - 2019/20 Forecast Outturn at Month 6

P
age 65



COST AND TREND DATA 6 OF 13 APPENDIX  5

LBHF - Social Care - Cost and Trend Analysis 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS Source

2015-16 Full 
Year

2016-17 Full 
Year

2017-18 
Full Year

2018-19 Full 
Year

2019-20 
Projection (as 
at November)

2020-21 
Estimates Notes and Comments

Delivery Cost

Total Spend

Social Care 
NHS Finance 
Return £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Home Care ASC-FR* 8,315 11,550 12,978 13,580 14,274 13,917

The commissioned forecast spend for 2020/21 is £14.75m. Once savings 
of (£1.14m) have been removed from the forecast due to the assumption 
that this will be achieved, offset by growth and transitions funding of 
£0.307m, the net forecast is £13.917m. The average package size costs 
has increased from £10.7k in 2018/19 to £11.9k in 2019/20.

Direct Payment ASC-FR 7,217 7,889 8,604 8,440 8,812 9,241

It is anticipated that there will be a net increase in residents from 476 in 
2018/19 to 489 in 2020/21 leading to an increase in forecast as well as the 
average package cost increasing. 

Placements ASC-FR 25,565 25,372 26,029 23,321 23,027 23,265

There was a large drop in spend in 2018/19 and this is due to a large 
provider de-registering to become Individual Service Funds with a contract 
size of £2.485m. The estimated cost for 2020/21 is £24.8m but there is a 
net decrease of (£1.5m) after taking into account savings, inflation and 
growth.

Total 41,097 44,811 47,611 45,341 46,113 46,423

Unit Cost of Activity

Home Care ASC-FR 13.61 15.39 16.92 17.15 17.21 17.57

Unit cost per hour - based on current residents and 2019/20 block contract 
rate. 2020/21 estimate is based on block average cost plus 2.1% inflation.

Direct Payments ASC-FR 338 300 £322 £335 £353 £360

Unit cost per week - based on 2019/20 residents. The estimate for 2020/21 
assumes a 2.1% inflationary increase.

Placements ASC-FR 848 1017 896 874 900 919

Unit cost per week - costs for 2020/21 are projected based on current 
residents and then adjusted for the budgeted percentage increase in 
inflation of 2.1%.

P
age 66



COST AND TREND DATA 7 OF 13 APPENDIX  5

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS Source

2015-16 Full 
Year

2016-17 Full 
Year

2017-18 
Full Year

2018-19 Full 
Year

2019-20 
Projection (as 
at November)

2020-21 
Estimates Notes and Comments

Client Numbers

Home Care Mosaic 1232 1286 1299 1392 1423 1468

2020/21 projection based on the average increase over the previous 3 
years

Direct Payment Mosaic 371 408 475 476 474 489
2020/21 projection based on the number of clients in the budget estimate.

Placements Mosaic 569 511 500 536 558 568

Projection based on current number of clients in 2019/20. Growth has been 
factored inline with Demographic projections. 

Home Care Package Intensity
0- 7 hours per week Mosaic 487 489 487 520 532 549

7 - 14 hours per week Mosaic 316 343 351 381 389 394

14- 28 hours per week Mosaic 304 312 316 327 334 349

28+ hours per week Mosaic 125 142 145 164 168 176

Total number of Clients 1232 1286 1299 1392 1423 1468
*ASC FR - Adult Social Care Finance Return

P
age 67



COST AND TREND DATA 8 OF 13 APPENDIX  5

11550

12978

13580

14274

13917

1286

1299

1392

1423

1468

0 2000 4000 6000 8000 10000 12000 14000 16000

2016-17

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21 

Home Care Spend and Client Numbers

Home Care Client Numbers Home Care Total Spend

1286

1299

1392

1423

1468

408

475

476

474

489

511

500

536

558

568

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000

2016-17

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

ASC Client Numbers

Home Care Direct Payment Placements

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

ASC Total Spend

Home Care Direct Payment Placements

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

Home Care Intensity

0- 7 hours per week 7 - 14 hours per week 14- 28 hours per week 28+ hours per week

P
age 68



Children's Services Trend Data - for 2020-21 budget

LAC and Leaving Care Data

Travel Care and support data

200

210

220

230

240

250

260

270

LBHF LAC numbers from April 2017 to November 2019

May-18 May-19 Var Sep-19
Increase from 

May 18

Destinations 56 67 20% 74 32%

Single Occupancy 
destinations

31 37 19% 47 52%

H&F - SEN Transport 2017/18 2018/19 % increase 2019/20 % increase

EHCP's 776 906 17% 1113 23%

Number of students receiving
transport*

211 247 17% 275 11%

Budget** £2.490m £2.761m 11% £2.603m -6%

Outturn £2.591m £3.176m 23% £3.583m 13%

Difference from budget to
outturn

£0.101m £0.415m 15% £0.980m 38%

Page 69



COST AND TREND DATA 10 OF 13 APPENDIX  5

Children's Services Trend Analysis 2019/20 
Table 1
National changes in the number of child protection enquiries, children subject to a child protection plan and 
looked-after children, since 2009/10
Extracted from CIPFA Performance Tracker 2018. This shows the national picture which reflects the growth in 
demand experienced by the LBHF Children's Services department.

Table 2
 LBHF children in care numbers from March 2010 to March 2018

As at 31 December 2018 Children in care have increased from 230 to 246.

Figure 1
Graph showing the FTE and 2018/19 full year spend forecast for each placement type

The arrows illustrate the savings targets which aim to move placements away from those such as P&V Residential 
(Private and Voluntary) towards In-house provision which have lower unit costs. Such placement changes will reduce 
costs but also aim to deliver positive outcomes for the service users.

31st March 2010 31st March 2011 31st March 2012 31st March 2013 31st March 2014 31st March 2015 31st March 2016 31st March 2017 31st March 2018

LBHF 260 251 225 236 200 185 198 215 230

260
251

225
236

200
185

198
215

230

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Children in care numbers by borough 31st March 2010 to 2018

Page 70



COST AND TREND DATA 11 OF 13 APPENDIX  5

Corporate Services IT Trend Data

IT Expenditure

Type of Spend
16/17 

Expenditure
17/18 

Expenditure

18/19 
Expenditur

e

19/20 
Forecast

20/21 
Forecast

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Salaries 1,855 4,263 4,419 4,280 4,770
Contract Spend 13,439 10,538 8,165 9,050 9,652
Project Spend 3,500 1,300 2,434 2,500 800
Total Spend 18,794 16,101 15,018 15,830 15,222

IT Spend Chart

Salary expenditure has increased since 2016/17 as the IT service was moved back in-house to the Council from the 
Hammersmith and Fulham Bridge Partnership (HFBP), and disaggregation from shared services with Kensington and 

Chelsea and Westminster Councils.

Contract spend has decreased as the service has replaced its current end of life desktop solution and implemented a 
desktop strategy which supports its ambition for better performance, agile working and delivers significant savings.

As a result of the desktop strategy, project spend has increased to purchase new equipment, plus to develop and 
improve infrastructure.

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

16/17 Expenditure 17/18 Expenditure 18/19 Expenditure 19/20 Forecast 20/21 Forecast

IT Services Gross Expenditure 16/17 - 20/21

Salaries

Contract Spend

Project Spend

P
age 71



COST AND TREND DATA 12 OF 13 APPENDIX  5

The Environment - Unit Costs and Trend Analysis Appendix 5

Actual Actual Estimate Estimate
Unit

Measure

Grounds Maintenance

Parks Grounds Maintenance Cost - Per Hectare £ 18,580 18,960 19,542 20,254 Inflationary increases 
Cemeteries Grounds Maintenance Cost - Per Hectare £ 17,245 17,538 18,377 19,044 Inflationary increases 

Waste & Street Cleansing

Refuse Collection Cost - Per Domestic Dwelling £ 47.51 48.83 55.33 56.87 Inflationary increases 

Waste Disposal

General Waste tonnages collected per annum tonnes 58,479 57,783 55,844 54,987
Year on year reduction in General waste tonnages as a 
result of waste reduction initiatives

Recyclate tonnages collected per annum tonnes 11,305 11,146 11,483 11,671
Increases likely to represent shift of waste from more 
expensive general (black sack) waste stream to cheaper 
recycling waste stream

Building Control

Number of chargeable jobs No. 632 680 578 578

Based on current trends, 10-15% expected drop in 
chargeable jobs in 2019-20. This is primarily due to the 
current recession in the construction industry as a result of 
the uncertainties surrounding Brexit, increased competition 
from private approved inspectors and a reduction in internal 
Council building control jobs 

Public Lighting

Public lighting maintenance cost - Per Column £ 184 26 28 29 8,743 columns. Inflationary increases 

Highway Maintenance

Carriageways and Footways maintenance cost - Per KM £ 11,610 14,857 14,990 13,954
Includes revenue and capital spend. Spend lower than 
budget in 2017/18, which rolled forward to fund works in 
2018/19 and 2019/20

Libraries

Visits to libraries 988,803 1,012,346 1,020,000 1,025,000
Volunteer hours          3731 3,800 3,932 4,000
Event Attendance 71,681 72,456 77,316 80,000
Cost Per Visits (£) £2.89 £2.95 £2.47 £2.39

Resident Services

My Account - Volume of Transactions No. 258,952 223,277 211,246          217,262

My Account - Cost per Transaction £ £0.85 £0.68 £0.78 £0.76
Costs reasonably static. Cost per transactions mainly 
driven by transaction volumes

External Customer Contact Centre - Volume of Telephone 
Calls

No. 128,143 132,431 130,000 130,000

External Customer Contact Centre - Cost per Telephone 
Call

£ £3.39 £3.09 £3.25 £3.25
Resident Access Programme targetting digital channel shift 
from 2020/21. Likely impact being quantified

Business Rates Collection % 98.70% 97.80% 98.70% 98.70%
Figures quoted for collection rates are in year as at 31st 
March

Concessionary Fares Payments £000 9,340 9279 9,179 9,025 Estimates provided by London Councils

Council Tax Collection % 97.00% 96.76% 97.50% 97.50%
Figures quoted for collection rates are in year as at 31st 
March

Revenues and Benefits Running Costs £m 4.14 4.01 3.38 3.30 Estimates assume service restructure

Service Area 2020-21 Notes2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

P
age 72



COST AND TREND DATA 13 OF 13 APPENDIX  5

The Economy -  Trend Analysis

Temporary Accommodation Long Term Trends : 

The Temporary Accommodation service faces a long-term trend of: 
• rising rents, 
• constraints on income collection because of Welfare Reform 
• increases in demand from homeless families. 

The number of households in Temporary Accommodation has been increasing annually (1,214 at April 2016; 1,324 at April 2017; 
1,444 at April 2018; with a slight reduction to 1,292 at April 2019). The current number of households in Temporary Accommodation 
is 1,249 (at 5th January 2020) and this represents a rise of over 2.9% since April 2016 at a time when the London average has 
increased by 5%. TA numbers are projected to increase to 1,275 at April 2020 and 1,325 at April 2021 and 1,375 at April 2022. 

Based on the data collected this year, the total number of enquiries has been 1,755 (219pcm), compared to 1,859 (232pcm) for the 
same period in 2018/19. This would indicate there is no noticeable pre-Brexit impact at this stage. The number of homeless 
applications in November 2019 was also low at 62, as opposed to 132 in November 2018. However over the course of the year, the 
number of applications is consistent with 2018/19 (2018/19: 739 - 92 per month; 2019/20: 709 - 89 per month).

In December 2019 we received 166 enquiries, down from 206 in December 2018, demonstrating no pre-Brexit impact and 
consistency in presentation since prior to the Homelessness Reduction Act. In December 2019 we received 52 homelessness 
applications and for the same period December 2018 we received 54, again demonstrating no significant shift in needs or trends. 
              

Planning

Planning income in recent years has fluctuated between £3.1m (2017/18), £3.6m (2018/19) and is currently forecast to reach £2.5m 
in 2019/20, some £1.2m short of the budget. 

The inherent volatility of planning income means it is difficult to predict future income expectations due to several factors including:

                        
                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
• Changes to the statutory charging schedule
• Economic factors such as the impact on planning activity of Brexit
• Changes in legislation e.g. permitted development rights, Planning Performance Agreement regulation
• Changes to pre-application charging fees and Planning Performance Agreement templates
• Local and wider market conditions
• Availability of development sites in the borough
• Developers by-passing the pre-application process as it is not compulsory
• Reduced developer funding of Planning Performance Agreements
• Government schemes to encourage house building, including grant schemes
• Developers’ responding to current and pipeline housing supply in borough (they don’t want to flood the local market)
•  Adverse weather conditions                                                             
                                                                                                                                           

Page 73



             
 

1 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 

Report to: Finance, Commercial Revenue and Contracts Policy and 

Accountability Committee. 

 

Date: 29 January 2020 

 

Subject: Reserves Strategy and Action Plan 

 

Report of: Cabinet Member for Finance and Commercial Services – 
Councillor Max Schmid  

 

 

 

 

Summary 

1.1 This report provides an update on Hammersmith and Fulham’s reserves and sets out the 
strategy for their future use 
 

1.2 In light of the uncertainty around future funding from Government, continued action is 
required to ensure that reserves remain adequate to meet the pressures facing the 
Council over the medium term and deal with future unexpected events. The reserves 
strategy acknowledges the challenges facing the Council and, as previously agreed by 
Strategic Leadership Team, proposes the streamlining of all available corporate and 
departmental reserves to focus on key priorities.  An action plan is proposed to improve 
the medium term-outlook including actions to identify capital receipts to safeguard 
reserves. 
 

1.3 Hammersmith and Fulham carried forward a general balance of £19.0m and earmarked 
reserves of £62.3m at the start of 2019/20.  This level of balances and reserves is slightly 
below average for a London Borough and reduced by £32.1m in 2018/19. The most 
significant movement in 2018/19 was the set aside of £13.6m regarding the historic high 
needs Dedicated Schools Grant funding deficit. Key council projects were also supported 
such as the use of £5.5m for managed services implementation and £2.0m for the Civic 
Campus scheme. 
 

1.4 The Council has already committed to use reserves to fund several major initiatives and 
priorities. It  also faces significant current and future financial risks (such as the current 
year forecast overspend, £9.4m at month 6 after mitigating actions) and potential costs of 
future service improvements.  
 
Recommendations 

Page 74

Agenda Item 5



             
 

2 
 

2.1 To review and comment on the reserves strategy and action plan as set out in this report. 
 

 

Wards Affected: All 

 

H&F Priorities 

Please state how the outcome will contribute to our priorities. 

Our Priorities Summary of how this report aligns to the 
H&F Priorities  

 Being ruthlessly financially 
efficient 

We need to always confirm that spend fits 
our Council’s priorities; challenge how much 
needs to be spent; and achieve results 
within agreed budgets. Finance is 
everyone’s business and every penny 
counts.   

 

Financial Impact  

This report is wholly financial in nature and those implications are contained within.  

 

 

Contact Officer(s): 

Name:  Emily Hill 

Position: Assistant Director of Finance 

Telephone: 020 8753 3145 

Email:  Emily.hill@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 

None 

 

Detailed Analysis 
 

3.1 Local government reserves play a crucial role in good public financial management. 
They exist so that a council can make one off investment in service transformation 
for the future or to respond to one off unexpected events or emerging priorities and 
needs. They are the foundation for good financial management and resilience. As 
one-off resources they can only be spent once. 

 
3.2 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) maintains 

guidance on the establishment and maintenance of local authority reserves and 

Page 75

mailto:Emily.hill@lbhf.gov.uk


             
 

3 
 

balances. The guidance identifies that reserves can be held for three main 
purposes:   

 As a working balance to help cushion the impact of uneven cash flows and 
avoid unnecessary temporary borrowing – this forms part of general 
balances 

 As a contingency to cushion the impact of unexpected events or 
emergencies – this also forms part of general balances 

 As a means of building up funds to meet known or predicted requirements; 
these specific reserves are known as earmarked reserves. 

 
3.3. At the start of 2019/20 Hammersmith and Fulham carried forward General Fund 

reserves and balances of £81.3m. The split, and trend since 2015/16, between the 
general balance and earmarked reserves is set out in Table 1. 

 
 Table 1 – The general balance and earmarked reserves 2015/16 to 2019/20 
  

 Opening 
balance 
2015/16 

Opening 
balance 
2016/17 

Opening 
balance 
2017/18 

Opening 
balance 
2018/19 

Opening 
balance 
2019/20 

General balance 19.0 19.0 19.0 19.0 19.0 

Earmarked reserves 89.5 90.0 82.9 94.4 62.3 

Total 108.5 109.0 101.9 113.4 81.3 

 
3.4 The Council’s reserves are slightly below average, both in overall value and as a 

percentage of net revenue expenditure, for a London Borough. A comparison 
against the average for a London Borough is set out in Table 2. 

 
 Table 2 – Comparison to other London Boroughs 
 

Measure Hammersmith 
and Fulham  

Average for 
London 
Boroughs 

Ranking relative 
to other London 
Boroughs (/32) 

Total general fund and non-
schools earmarked general 
fund reserves as at 31 March 
2019 (£000s) 

81,313 106,462 15 

General fund and non-schools 
earmarked general fund 
reserves as a percentage of 
net service revenue 
expenditure (%) 

36% 42% 16 

 
3.5 As part of the Audit Findings Report for the year ended 31 March 2019 the 

Council’s external auditors (Grant Thornton) commented on the level of the 
Council’s reserves:  

 
‘The Council’s reserves level is of concern as there doesn’t appear to be sufficient 
cushion to weather the ongoing financial challenges that the Council will face over 
the medium term due to reductions in central government funding and forecast 
pressures of the DSG funding. The Council only has finite reserves available and it 
is important that you continue to maintain appropriate budgetary control. It cannot 

Page 76



             
 

4 
 

be stressed enough how important it is to have a fall back position to address the 
challenges of the future.  We have seen a number of Councils reach the financial 
precipice and members have a fiduciary duty to ensure the Council retains financial 
sustainability.  We would strongly recommend that use of reserves remains limited 
in future years other than for specifically earmarked schemes.’ 
 
General balance 
 

3.6. Under Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003, the Strategic Director, 
Finance and Governance is required to include, in budget reports, his view of the 
adequacy of the balances and reserves the budget provides for. The level of 
balances is examined each year, along with the level of reserves, considering the 
risks facing the authority in the medium term.  

 
3.7 Given the on-going scale of change in local government funding, and risks facing 

the Council, the Strategic Director, Finance and Governance considered, as part of 
the 2019/20 budget report, that general balances need to be maintained within the 
range of £14m to £20m. 

 
3.8. The current general balance of £19m falls within this range. It represents 3.6% 

(equivalent to 13 days spend) of the Council’s gross budget of £525m.  
 
 Earmarked reserves 

 
3.9. In accordance with CIPFA guidance, earmarked reserves are held for several 

purposes:  

 sums set aside for major schemes such as the decant from the Town Hall and 
extension as part of the Civic Campus scheme 

 insurance reserves 

 service transformation or to meet one-off pressures  

 unspent revenue grants.  
  

3.10 Whilst use of accumulated reserves can be part of a plan to ease future budget 
reductions and to allow longer term savings to come to fruition, it is not a prudent 
use to draw down reserves with no clear plan on how any budget gap will be 
bridged once reserves are no longer available.  

 
3.11. Some earmarked reserves have restrictions placed on their use. For example, 

reserves relating to unspent revenue grants may have conditions on their use. The 
main restricted reserves for Hammersmith and Fulham are set out in Table 2. 

 
  

  

Page 77



             
 

5 
 

 
Table 2 – Restricted and earmarked reserves 
  

 Opening balance 
2019/20 

 £m 

Revenue grants 3.5 

Insurance fund 6.3 

Developer contributions (section 106 and Community 
Infrastructure Levy) 

6.5 

Other 1.2 

Total 17.5 

Other earmarked reserves 44.8 

Total earmarked reserves 62.3 

 
RESERVES STRATEGY 
 

3.12 The proposed reserves strategy is based on the following key principles: 

 General Balances to be reviewed annually as part of the Council Tax and 
Budget report. They have remained within the current range of £14m to 
£20m for the last decade. Over the past year national political and economic 
risk and uncertainty has increased significantly. In addition, after years of 
reductions in government funding there is very limited capacity to manage 
unplanned costs within annual departmental revenue budgets. General  
balances may need to be revised upwards to mitigate against the potential 
impact on the Council of an economic slowdown.  

 Those reserves no longer required for their intended purpose are identified 
and made available for other defined priorities.  

 The level of reserves and forecast to be re-assessed every 6 months to 
ensure their adequacy. 

 The risk assumptions to be reviewed every 6 months. 

 A long-term view will be used when assessing the use of reserves to ensure 
that existing commitments and agreed priorities can be delivered. 

 Being ‘ruthlessly financial efficient’ will underpin any request for use of 
reserves. Internal bids for one-off funding will be peer challenged and need 
to be competitively argued so that using reserves is agreed in exceptional 
cases. The ‘one-off nature’ and funding solution/ outcome will be rigorously 
assessed during the funding term and at the end of life. Use off reserves will 
only be progressed once agreed with the Strategic Director, Finance and 
Governance, the Chief Executive and cabinet members. 

 Reserves can only be used once and the required future service 
transformation is significant. In accordance with proper accounting practice, 
and subject to affordability, the draw down from reserves will be minimised 
through consideration of government provisions for the flexible use of capital 
receipts, securing an appropriate contribution from partners and non-General 
Fund services, revenue contributions and regular balance sheet review..   

 When the Council is in receipt of one-off and non-recurrent resources it 
should aim to utilise them to top up reserves. 

 The reserves strategy will be supported by an action plan, that is updated 
quarterly, that aims to ensure the adequacy of reserves over the medium-
term.  

Page 78



             
 

6 
 

 
The planned use of reserves  
 
General balances  
 

3.13. In accordance with the agreed 2019/20 budget strategy, general balances will be 
maintained within the range of £14m to £20m. This falls within the range of 2.5% to 
4% of the Council’s gross budget of £525m. This sum is reviewed annually, after 
consideration of the financial risks facing Hammersmith and Fulham, as part of the 
Council Tax and Budget Report. 

 
3.14. General balances cover unforeseen financial risks and provide cover for 

unexpected or unavoidable additional costs. Should general balances be 
anticipated to fall below the recommended range then serious concerns would arise 
regarding the Council’s financial resilience and sustainability. 

 
3.15 General balances have remained within the current range for a decade. The past 

year has seen an increase in national political and economic risk and uncertainty. 
Future finances and demand for services, both at a national and local level, will be 
affected should such risk result in an economic slowdown. In addition, after years of 
reductions in government funding there is very limited capacity to manage 
unplanned costs within annual departmental revenue budgets. 

 
 Unrestricted earmarked reserves 
 

3.16 As set out in Table 2 the level of unrestricted earmarked reserves carried forward at 
the start of 2019/20 was £44.8m. This was split over 37 different reserves. In 
accordance with the proposed reserves strategy the intended purpose of such 
reserves has been reviewed and the number of reserves streamlined to 14. These 
are set out in Table 3.  

 
Table 3 – Proposed earmarked reserves (unrestricted) as at 1 April 2019 
 

 £000s 

Civic campus 17,610 

DSG High Needs deficit reserve 15,000 

Demand and pressures 5,598 

Facilities management 2,500 

Managed services 1,094 

Temporary accommodation 900 

Unallocated contingency 563 

Schools regeneration fund 525 

Technology and IT 394 

Pensions 372 

Contribution to local elections 92 

Community safety 70 

High speed 2 58 

Property 44 

Total 44,820 

 

Page 79



             
 

7 
 

3.17 Funding is now set aside for known commitments that deliver agreed priorities.  
There are risks associated with streamlining reserves and these are summarised in 
Appendix 1. In some areas, departments had plans to use reserves to offset current 
spend pressures or bring forward future initiatives. In future any such request will 
need to be considered on a council wide basis as part of the overall reserves 
strategy. 

 
3.18 Based on the approved commitments, and budgeted contributions, a cash flow 

forecast of earmarked reserves (unrestricted) has been undertaken to 2023/24 
(Appendix 2). The forecast identifies a balance of £38.0m that has yet to be 
committed.  

 
 Table 4 – Unrestricted earmarked reserves forecast to 2023/24 based on 

existing commitments 
  

 £m 

Balance at 1 April 2019 44.8 

Less existing commitments (42.9) 

Add:  

Revenue contributions 8.1 

Business rates (timing adjustment) 7.5 

Flexible use of capital receipts/capitalisation 3.5 

Civic Campus Joint Venture profit share estimate 11.1 

Civic Campus section 106/CIL contributions 5.9 

Uncommitted balance 38.0 

 
3.17. The forecast assumes a 5-year relocation regarding the Civic Campus. If the break 

clause was exercised at the earliest opportunity (three and a half years), in line with 
the current programme, the call on reserves would reduce  by £7.7m (of which the 
General Fund element would be £5.9m). 

 
 Reserves adequacy and future risk / priorities 
 

3.18. The Council faces several potential risks whilst indicative plans for further service 
transformation highlight possible further calls on reserves. These are summarised 
in Table 5. An action plan has been developed to mitigate against future risk with 
the expected benefit also summarised in Table 5. 
  

Page 80



             
 

8 
 

 
 Table 5 – Future risks / potential call on reserves to 2023/24 

 £m 

Uncommitted balance of earmarked reserves 38.0 

Funding assumptions:  

Use of the Invest to Save Fund (including the balance of 
uncommitted capital receipts) 

(4.7) 

Use of the IT and Technology Fund (4.0) 

Future risks  

Increase in the DSG High Needs cumulative deficit to 2023/24 (15.0) 

Essential building maintenance backlog (2.5) 

Current forecast 2019/20 budget overspend (month 6) (9.5) 

Any future in-year overspends ? 

Potential future drawdowns  

Resident access (invest to save/ ZBB proposal)  (4.0) 

Waste contract procurement (3.5) 

Earls Court CPO strategy (0.3) 

Support for future regeneration initiatives ? 

Early Intervention Link Worker Support Service (potential 
unfunded balance beyond 2020/21) 

(0.6) 

Confirmed Benefit from the Reserves Action Plan (Table 6) 13.2 

Remaining Balance 7.3 

 
3.19 The main assumptions that underpin Table 5 are set out below: 

 The potential use of the Invest to Save Fund and Technology and IT reserves is 
in line with the budgeted revenue contributions to reserves. In line with the 
proposed reserves strategy any use of these reserves will need to demonstrate 
that it is being ruthlessly financially efficient with peer challenge by the Chief 
Executive and Strategic Director of Finance and Governance.  

 The DSG High Needs deficit stood at £13.6m at the start of 2019/20 and is 
forecast to increase (at month 6) by £5.7m in 2019/20. The above forecast 
assumes that the total increase in the deficit will be £15m over the next 4 years. 
This takes account of the extra government funding made available in the 2019 
Spending Review. 

 Following the end of the Amey contract there is a backlog of maintenance works. 
Subject to the completion and review of building surveys and detailed plan of 
works an allowance is made for expenditure of £2.5m. 

 The current year monitor is forecasting, at month 6, an overspend of £9.5m. This 
will need to be met from reserves unless the overspend is addressed. Officers 
are working to reduce this overspend in the second half of the year. No future 
overspends are assumed in the forecast nor sums required to balance future 
budgets. 

 Several new initiatives are expected to come on stream in the forthcoming 
months. These include a new resident access programme, procuring a new 
waste contract and potential funding for the Early Intervention Link Worker 
support service beyond 2020/21. Indicative funding allocations are included 
within the reserves forecast. 
 

3.20. The future risks forecast highlights a risk regarding the adequacy of the 
Councils reserves, over the medium term, unless action is taken. An action 

Page 81



             
 

9 
 

plan is set out in Table 6 to mitigate against this risk. This will be updated quarterly. 
The actions identified to date are estimated to benefit the reserves forecast by 
£13.2m.  

 
 Table 6 – Reserves action plan 
 

Ref Action Potential 
Opportunity 

Update  

1 Relocate back to the new Town Hall Civic 
Campus at the earliest opportunity and in line 
with the current programme timetable – this 
would enable the break clause to be 
exercised at three and a half years. 

£7.7m  

2 Address the forecast 2019/20 overspend 
through mitigating actions to reduce in-year 
expenditure and/ or increase income.  

£9.5m - 

3 Prepare and agree a programme of asset 
disposals to deliver capital receipts to fund 
invest to save and IT investment costs 
through the flexible use of capital receipts. 
The regulations require expenditure to be 
incurred by the end of 2021/22 and £5m is 
forecast to be spent in these areas during this 
period. 

£5m  - 

4 Capitalisation of relevant Civic Campus costs 
(such as decant accommodation fit-out costs 
and other programme costs) and funding of 
these through capital receipts. High level, 
indicative figures show that the assumed sum 
that can be capitalised could increase by 
c£4m. This will reduce the call on reserves 
only if funded from capital receipts generated 
as suggested in action above.  

£4m - 

5 Capitalisation of relevant Civic Campus 
programme costs and professional fees  
where these are in respect of the Town Hall 
refurbishment and fit out (capital works). The 
Civic Campus project team is preparing an 
analysis of costs to more accurately forecast 
this opportunity. 

tbc - 

6 Review of future requests to use reserves, 
such as the Resident Access programme, to 
identify potential capitalisation opportunities, 
only where capital receipts can be identified. 

tbc - 

7 Ensure all Council budgets (such as the 
Housing Revenue Account/ Pension Fund) 
and partners pay a fair share of costs falling 
on reserves. Updated figures, that are 
included in the HRA business plan, suggest 
the potential HRA contribution could reduce 
the call on reserves for the new Civic Campus 

£2.5m £6m 

Page 82



             
 

10 
 

Ref Action Potential 
Opportunity 

Update  

by £6m over 5 years. The HRA contribution 
would reduce to £4.2m for a 3.5 years 
relocation.  

8 Peer Challenge by the Chief Executive and 
Strategic Director of Finance and Governance 
of all existing commitments. 

tbc  

9 Review the planned maintenance backlog. tbc  

10 Balance sheet review to establish if further 
reserves can be freed up. As part of the 
2020/21 budget process £3.4m of historic 
council tax adjustments have been identified 
as available for release. 

tbc £3.4m 

11 Take action to reduce the DSG overspend. 
Raise concern over funding shortfall and the 
accounting treatment with government. Use 
all the £2.4m of additional funding (for the 
next 3 years) made available through the 
Spending Round 2019 to reduce the call on 
reserves. Deliver Phase 2 of the High Needs 
deficit recovery plan. Demographic pressures 
and changes in funding allocations for the 
DSG central block now suggest that a 
reduction in the forecast DSG overspend is 
unlikely. 

£7.2m £0m 

12 Review external funding opportunities and 
developer contributions. 

tbc  

13 Assess the IT funding requirement over the 
medium term. 

tbc  

14 Review the purpose for which all reserves are 
held on a twice-yearly basis, including those 
that are restricted, to ensure they are required 
for their intended purpose. 

tbc  

15 Consider additional contributions to reserves 
as part of annual revenue budget setting 
process. The 2020/21 budget includes new 
contributions of £3.8m from non-recurrent 
benefits on the collection fund and operation 
of the 2019/20 business rates pool. 

tbc £3.8m 

 Total  £13.2m 

 
  Restricted reserves 
 

3.21 The restricted reserves of £17.5m are forecast to reduce to £9.8m by 2022/23 as 
they are used for their intended purpose. This takes no account of further 
contributions that may be received. Such reserves will be reviewed annually to 
ensure they are still required for their intended purpose. 
  

Page 83



             
 

11 
 

 
 Overall cashflow 
 

3.22 A reserves cashflow forecast has been undertaken. This is detailed in Appendix 2 
with the assumptions. The forecast is for financial modelling purposes and 
significant uncertainty remains regarding the timing of expenditure and income 
flows. A major potential variant is the new Civic Campus. Options have been 
modelled based on relocating back to the Town Hall at the earliest opportunity (3 
and a half years in line with the current programme) or in five years (the life of the 
leases).  

 
  
 

Table 7 – Cash flow (general balances, earmarked and restricted reserves) 
 

 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

Five-year Civic Campus 
relocation 

£m £m £m £m £m 

Opening balance 81.3 68.9 62.4 54.0 45.6 

Forecast movement  -12.5 -6.5 -8.4 -8.5 8.9 

Closing balance 68.9 62.4 54.0 45.6 54.4 

Risks and other potential uses 
(Table 5) – cash impact 

-15.5 -21.3 -25.9 -29.3 -32.1 

Action Plan 0.6 9 10.2 11.4 13.2 

Revised balance 53.9 50.1 38.4 27.7 35.5 

      

Three-and-a-half-year Civic 
Campus relocation 

     

Opening balance 81.3 68.9 62.4 54.0 63.4 

Forecast movement  -12.5 -6.5 -8.4 9.3 -1.2 

Closing balance 68.9 62.4 54.0 63.4 62.1 

Risks and other potential uses 
(Table 5) – cash impact 

-15.5 -21.3 -25.9 -29.2 -32.1 

Action Plan 0.6 9 10.2 11.4 11.4 

Revised balance 53.9 50.1 38.4 45.4 41.4 

 
3.23 The cash-flow forecast emphasises the need for regular monitoring of the reserves 

forecast and implementation of the action plan. Reserves can only be spent once 
and the forecast to 2023/24 identifies a tightening in the Council’s finances that will 
need careful management and review. Continued focus will be required on keeping 
spend within budget, avoiding the use of reserves to balance future budgets and on 
rebuilding reserves to support future investments. 

 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – General Fund reserves forecast to 2022/23 
 
Appendix 2 – Reserves cashflow forecast 
 
 

Page 84



APPENDIX 1

General Fund reserves forecast to 2022/23

 Current 
balance at 
31/3/2019

Proposed 
balance at 

1/04/2019 after 
realignment

Commitments Contributions 
to 2023/24

Remaining 
balance Commentary

Earmarked reserves £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Corporate

Facilities Management 2,365 2,500 2,500

Indicative figures identify a potential £9m backlog of works to Council buildings. Up 
to 40% (£3.6m) of these are potential revenue costs. These are not budgeted be met 
from the existing facilities management budget (£4.3m per annum). 

Risk: The ability to tackle the backlog will be constrained by the reduction in the 
reserve. £2.5m is proposed to ensure essential provision for Health & Safety works. 

Civic Campus 1,846 17,610 -34,610 17,000 0

The £17m contribution is based on a £11.1m profit share from the Joint Venture and 
section 106 and CIL contributions from the development of £5.9m. The total 
approved budget at January Council was £36.7m of which £2.1m was spent in 
2018/19. The estimated commitment does not take account of the reserves action 
plan. This would reduce the required General Fund contribution by £6m over 5 
years. An updated position will be presented as part of the closure of the 2019/20 
Accounts.

Opportunities: The figures assume lease costs based on a 5-year relocation. If the 
break clause was exercised at the earliest opportunity and in line with programme 
timetables, which are currently on track, the call on reserves would reduce by £7.7m. 
Review will also be undertaken of further potential capitalisation of fit out costs 
(where capital receipts are available) and programme costs and HRA contributions 
to the decant accommodation costs once decant plans have been finalised.

Capital Reserve 1,688 0 0
 Risk: Any future capital funding shortfalls will need to be financed by borrowing or 
use of capital receipts. 

Demand & Pressures* 2,801 5,598 -1,253 7,460 11,805

Review of Cabinet agreed commitments include:
£0.17 Waste Management review
£0.1m Heathrow legal challenge 
£0.09m for Linford Christie Consultation (February Cabinet 2019)
£0.58m contributions to developing a world class SEN service - £0.29m pa to 
2020/21 (Council February 2018)
£0.083m health service optimisation (Cabinet October 2017)
£0.121m Mosaic IT costs (Cabinet February 2017). 

The contribution is reimbursement of sums temporarily drawn down in 2018/19 due 
to timing differences regarding on the collection fund regarding business rates. This 
reserve will also be increased in accordance with the implementation of the 
Reserves Action Plan

Invest to Save 2,730 0 -171 4,786 4,615

The commitments are £119,000 for Children's Services and £52,000 for commercial 
initiatives.

The contributions are made up of annual revenue contributions of £0.75m and use of 
capital receipts brought forward of £1.036m (flexible use of capital receipts).

P
age 85



APPENDIX 1

Pensions / London Pension Fund Authority 1,242 372 -372 0

The commitment is the budgeted drawdown in 2019/20 to smooth the increase in the 
pension past service deficit as per the last triennial pensions revaluatio

Managed Services 4,061 1,094 -1,094 0

 The commitment is the unspent balance of the originally approved sum of £7.9m - 
further costs are required in 2019/20 for the project stabilisation arrangements, 
required post on-boarding developments and legacy systems costs. 

People Reserve 3,696 0 0

Corporately there is an annual revenue budget of £0.5m to fund redundancy costs. 
Any excess expenditure will no longer be fundable from the reserve. Average spend 
for the last 7 years is £0.627m per annum. There will be no funding for other one-off 
HR initiatives outside the annual revenue budget.

Technology and IT 7,665 394 -2,894 6,500 4,000
The contributions are annual contributions of £0.8m per annum plus the balance of 
£2.5m of carried forward capital receipts.

Financial Resilience 3,391 0 0  Risk: No capacity to absorb unforeseen funding/legislation changes.  

Property Reserve 3,660 44 -44 0

 This reserve has previously been used to fund ad-hoc property costs, such as 
abortive disposal costs, and fund dilapidations. 
Risk: No future resilience if reduced to nil.   

Unallocated Contingency 1,108 563 -563 0
 Commitment relates to carry forward of SEN Reform Grant funding £178,000. Brexit 
funding of £205,000, various other CMDS £180,000. 

Departmental

Pressures & Demands (ASC) 1,878 0 0
Will remove departmental capacity to address demand and other pressures. Has 
previously been used to achieve a year end balanced budget.

Schools Regeneration Fund (CHS) 525 525 -506 19  Commitment is for schools renewal programme agreed by Cabinet in March 2019. 
Earls Court (ENV) 32 0 0 Established to cover loss of licensing income following Earls Court closure.

Avonmore Community Centre (ENV) 33 0 0
The reserve was set aside as a contribution to third sector running costs for the 
library. Limited spend to date.

Community Safety Reserve (ENV) 298 70 -70 0
£70,000 use approved (Cab June 2018). Various other Community Safety initiatives 
could be supported from the balance if it were available

MTFS Delivery Risk (ENV) 845 0 0
The reserve could be used to meet service budget pressures in 2019/20 if it were 
available.

Parks (ENV) 38 0 0
Current reserve set aside to fund reactive works such as storm damage and tree 
works. Alternative funding may need to be sought.

Property Disposals (ECO) 21 0 0
Savings Proposals (ENV) 50 0 0
Libraries 4 0 0

Temporary Accommodation (ECO) 2,610 900 -900 0

 Cabinet October 2018 approved £900,000 to support private sector accommodation 
initiatives. £450,000 budgeted to be drawn down in 2019/20. The reserve has also 
previously supported other payments of £600,000. This is now a budget pressure.  

Growth  & Pressures (ECO) 134 0 0
High Speed 2 (ECO) 58 58 -58 0 Assumed this will be required.

Third Sector Investment (COR) 428 0 0
 This reserve was built up by carrying forward underspends on the annual third 
sector investment fund. Current forecast for £100,000 overspend this year  

Contribution to Local Election (COR) 92 92 -392 300 0
 Annual contribution to the reserve of £75,000 . Will be drawn down to fund 2022 
local election. 

H & F Direct (ENV) 222 0
Pressures & Demands (F&G) 75 0 0

P
age 86



APPENDIX 1

Controlled Parking Fund (ENV) 1,224 0 0

Represents an accumulated balance of prior year parking surpluses. Its use is 
restricted by the Traffic Management Act (2004). It can only be applied to projects 
that fall within specific statutory purposes set out in the Act (mostly related to 
administration of the parking service, road and environmental improvements; road 
maintenance and passenger transport). 

DSG Deficit Reserve 0 15,000 15,000

 The proposed balance funds the existing deficit of £13.6m (shown as a negative 
reserve in the statement of accounts) and provides a potential extra £15m cover for 
the next 4 years. The forecast 2019/20 deficit is £4.6m.  

Total Earmarked Reserves 44,820 44,820 -42,927 36,046 37,939

Restricted Reserves
Supporting People Programme Grant (ASC) 909 909 -909 0  Budgeted to be spent by 2021/22.
Troubled Families Grant (CHS) 937 937 -937 0  Budgeted to be fully spent by the end of 2020/21. 
Partners in Practice Grant (CHS) 1,127 1,127 -1,127 0  Budgeted to be fully spent by the end of 2020/21. 
Controlling Migration Fund Grant (ECO) 80 80 80
Housing 270 270 -270 0 Relate to Council Housing and need to transfer to the HRA.
Sullivan Service Charges (ECO) 26 26 26 Must be used on the Sullivan estate business units.

Barclays Sports Grant (ENV) 29 29 29
Grant funds available to fund various projects that increase participation in sport 
across the borough.

LAA Waste Grant (ENV) 127 127 -127 0 Mostly a restricted external grant for recycling reward and incentive scheme.

Public Health Funded Projects (ENV) 35 35 35

Carry forward of unspent Public Health grant (Healthier Homes Project + Healthy 
Workplace Charter). Projects cannot progress if funding is not available.

Fulham Palace (ENV) 453 453 453 Contractual commitment (possible available to use if not drawn down by 2021/22).

Linford Christie Fund (ENV) 7 7 7
Restricted bequest, to fund grants to young athletes as requested and agreed (ad 
hoc).

Local Lead Flood Authority Grant (ENV) 324 324 324

This is a government grant to implement flood prevention schemes.  Several projects 
listed against this scheme, including £100,000 match funding for £350,000 Thames 
Water contribution for White City Project. Without this funding the scheme would 
have to be abandoned and the external funding forfeited. Also forms a key part of 
the Council's mitigation strategy for climate change.

Section 106 Contributions 2,216 2,216 2,216

Community Infrastructure Levy 4,320 4,320 -4,320 0
The new Civic Campus requires £33.7m towards the Town Hall refurbishment and fit 
out.

Bishops Park (ENV) 317 317 317
Insurance Fund 6,312 6,312 6,312

Restricted Reserves 17,489 17,489 -7,690 0 9,799

General Balance 19,004 19,004 0 0 19,004

Total 81,313 81,313 -50,617 36,046 66,742
All Balances and Reserves

P
age 87



Appendix 2

Reserves Forecast - Cash Flow
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24  Assumptions 

Earmarked Reserves £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Balance brought forward 44,820      39,038     34,518     26,423     35,755     
Expenditure

Facilities Management 625-          625-          625-          625-          
 No spend this year. Spend equally the next 4 
years. 

Civic Campus 6,922-        6,922-       6,922-       6,122-       

 High level assumption that spend equally 
spread over 3.5 years. Before Reserves Action 
Plan. 

Demands & Pressures 906-           347-           Updated cash flow from current commitments. 

Invest to Save 171-           1,154-       1,154-       1,154-       1,153-       

 Existing commitment is £171,000 modelled to 
spend in 2019/20. Balance brought forward 
spread over next 4 years. 

Pension/LPFA 372-            Budgeted to be fully spent in 2019/20. 
Managed Services 821-           274-           Assume 75% spend year 1. 

Technology and IT 2,894-        1,000-       1,000-       1,000-       1,000-       
 Spend in line with current commitment in 
2019/20. Balance over the next 4 years. 

Unallocated Contingency 422-           141-           Assume 75% spend year 1. 
Property Reserve 44-              All to spend in year 1. 

Schools Regeneration 253-           253-          19-            
 Schools renewal strategy. Assume 50% spend 
per annum. Bal of £19,000 in 2021/22. 

Community Safety 70-              Assume fully spent 2019/20. 

Temporary Accommodation 450-           450-          
 Cabinet October 2018 approved £900,000 
spread over 2 years. 

High Speed 2 58-              Assume spend year 1. 
Local Election 392-          75-             Show beyond 2022/23 as committed. 

Contributions
Revenue
Invest to Save 750           750          750          750          750           Existing annual contribution 
IT Investment 800           800          800          800          800           Existing annual contribution 
Local Election 75             75            75            75            75             Existing annual contribution 

Capital

Capital receipts flexibility 3,065        471          
 Assumes funds all 2019/20 Invest to Save & IT 
investment. Balance to 2020/21. 

Corporate Demands & Pressures

Business Rates 2,911        4,549       
 As per NNDR monitor - timing adjustment in 
relation to 2018/19. 

Civic Campus
Section 106 5,900        Figures assumed as per approval by Council.  

JV Profit Share 11,100     

 Figures assumed as per approval by Council. 
The project will continue to consider profit as 
part of ongoing viability assessment. This will be 
formally revisited before the conditional land 
sale takes place. 

Closing Balance 39,038      34,518     26,423     35,755     34,527     

Other Potential Uses

Available balance 39,038      34,518     26,423     35,755     34,527     
Less prior year further movements 15,540-     21,341-     25,907-     29,263-     
Current year overspend 9,500-         As per CRM 6. 

DSG Deficit Reserve 5,790-        1,301-       2,116-       3,156-       2,637-       
 Updated modelling following Spending Round 
2019. 

Resident Access 400           2,400-       1,200-       
 Assume 10% year 1, 60% year 2 and 30% year 
3. 

Waste Contract 350-           2,100-       1,050-       
 Assume 10% year 1, 60% year 2 and 30% year 
3. 

Earls Court CPO Strategy 300-           
 Early Intervention Link Worker Support 
Service 200-          200-          200-          

Total further movements 15,540-      5,801-       4,566-       3,356-       2,837-       

Updated cash 23,498      13,177     716          6,692       2,627       

Modelling Based on 3.5 Year Civic Campus Programme

Page 88



Appendix 2

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Restricted Reserves £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Balance brought forward 17,489      10,820     8,898       8,593       8,592       
Expenditure
Supporting People 303-           303-          303-           Assume equally spent over 3 years 
Troubled Families 469-           468-           Assume equally spent over 2 years 
Partners in Practice 563-           563-           Assume equally spent over 2 years 
Controlling Migration 40-             40-             Assume equally spent over 2 years 
Housing 270-            Transfer to the HRA in 2019/20 
Barclays Sports Grant (ENV) 29-              Assume all used in year 1 
LAA Waste Grant (ENV) 127-            Assume all used in year 1 
Fulham Palace (ENV) 227-           226-           Assume equally spent over 2 years 
Linford Christie Fund (ENV) 2-               2-              2-              1-               Assume spent over 4 years 
Local Lead Flood Authority Grant (ENV) 162-           162-           Assume equally spent over 2 years 

Section 106 Contributions
 Assume no net reduction. Balance remains at 
£2.216m 

Community Infrastructure Levy 4,320-        

 Assume all required as part of £33.7m 
contribution to Hammersmith Town Hall 
refurbishment  

Bishops Park (ENV) 159-           158-           Assume equally spent over 2 years 

Insurance Fund
 Assume no net reduction. Balance remains at 
£6.312m. 

10,820      8,898       8,593       8,592       8,592       

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
General Balances £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Opening Balance 19,004      19,004     19,004     19,004     19,004     
Forecast Movement -            -          -          -          -          
Closing Balance 19,004      19,004     19,004     19,004     19,004     

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
All Balances £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Opening Balance 81,313      68,862     62,420     54,020     63,351     
Forecast Movement 12,451-      6,442-       8,400-       9,331       1,228-       
Closing Balance 68,862      62,420     54,020     63,351     62,123     

Other Potential Uses 15,540-      5,801-       4,566-       3,356-       2,837-       
Prior Years other potential uses 15,540-     21,341-     25,907-     29,263-     
Impact Reserves Action Plan 600           9,000       10,200     11,400     11,400     
Updated Closing Balance 53,922      41,079     28,113     34,088     41,423     

Page 89



Appendix 2

Reserves Forecast - Cash Flow
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24  Assumptions 

Earmarked Reserves £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Balance brought forward 44,820      39,038    34,518    26,423    17,955    
Expenditure

Facilities Management 625-         625-         625-         625-         
 No spend this year. Spend equally the next 4 
years. 

Civic Campus 6,922-        6,922-      6,922-      6,922-      6,922-      

 High level assumption that spend equally 
spread over 5 years. Before Reserves Action 
Pan 

Demands & Pressures 906-           347-          Updated cash flow from current commitments. 

Invest to Save 171-           1,154-      1,154-      1,154-      1,153-      

 Existing commitment is £171,000 modelled to 
spend in 2019/20. Balance brought forward 
spread over next 4 years 

Pension/LPFA 372-            Budgeted to be fully spent in 2019/20. 
Managed Services 821-           274-          Assume 75% spend year 1. 

Technology and IT 2,894-        1,000-      1,000-      1,000-      1,000-      
 Spend in line with current commitment in 
2019/20. Balance over the next 4 years. 

Unallocated Contingency 422-           141-          Assume 75% spend year 1. 
Property Reserve 44-              All to spend in year 1. 

Schools Regeneration 253-           253-         19-            
 Schools renewal strategy. Assume 50% spend 
per annum. Bal of £19,000 in 2021/22. 

Community Safety 70-              Assume fully spent 2019/20. 

Temporary Accommodation 450-           450-         
 Cabinet October 2018 approved £900,000 
spread over 2 years. 

High Speed 2 58-              Assume spend year 1. 
Local Election 392-         75-             Show beyond 2022/23 as committed. 

Contributions
Revenue
Invest to Save 750           750         750         750         750          Existing annual contribution 
IT Investment 800           800         800         800         800          Existing annual contribution 
Local Election 75             75            75            75            75             Existing annual contribution 

Capital

Capital receipts flexibility 3,065        471         
 Assumes funds all 2019/20 Invest to Save & IT 
investment. Balance to 2020/21. 

Corporate Demands & Pressures

Business Rates 2,911        4,549      
 As per NNDR monitor - timing adjustment in 
relation to 2018/19. 

Civic Campus
Section 106 5,900       Figures assumed as per approval by Council.  

JV Profit Share 11,100    

 Figures assumed as per approval by Council. 
The project will continue to consider profit as 
part of ongoing viability assessment. This will be 
formally revisited before the conditional land 
sale takes place. 

Closing Balance 39,038      34,518    26,423    17,955    26,805    

Other Potential Uses

Available balance 39,038      34,518    26,423    17,955    26,805    
Less prior year further movements 15,540-    21,341-    25,907-    29,263-    
Current year overspend 9,500-         As per CRM 6. 

DSG Deficit Reserve 5,790-        1,301-      2,116-      3,156-      2,637-      
 Updated modelling following Spending Round 
2019. 

Resident Access 400           2,400-      1,200-      
 Assume 10% year 1, 60% year 2 and 30% year 
3. 

Waste Contract 350-           2,100-      1,050-      
 Assume 10% year 1, 60% year 2 and 30% year 
3. 

Earls Court CPO Strategy 300-           
 Early Intervention Link Worker Support 
Service 200-         200-         200-         

Total further movements 15,540-      5,801-      4,566-      3,356-      2,837-      

Updated cash 23,498      13,177    716         11,108-    5,095-      

Modelling Based on 5 Year Civic Campus Programme

Page 90



Appendix 2

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Restricted Reserves £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Balance brought forward 17,489      10,820    8,898      8,593      8,592      
Expenditure
Supporting People 303-           303-         303-          Assume equally spent over 3 years 
Troubled Families 469-           468-          Assume equally spent over 2 years 
Partners in Practice 563-           563-          Assume equally spent over 2 years 
Controlling Migration 40-             40-             Assume equally spent over 2 years 
Housing 270-            Transfer to the HRA in 2019/20 
Barclays Sports Grant (ENV) 29-              Assume all used in year 1 
LAA Waste Grant (ENV) 127-            Assume all used in year 1 
Fulham Palace (ENV) 227-           226-          Assume equally spent over 2 years 
Linford Christie Fund (ENV) 2-               2-              2-              1-               Assume spent over 4 years 
Local Lead Flood Authority Grant (ENV) 162-           162-          Assume equally spent over 2 years 

Section 106 Contributions
 Assume no net reduction. Balance remains at 
£2.216m 

Community Infrastructure Levy 4,320-        
 Assume all required as part of £33.7m 
contribution to HTH refurbishment  

Bishops Park (ENV) 159-           158-          Assume equally spent over 2 years 

Insurance Fund
 Assume no net reduction. Balance remains at 
£6.312m 

10,820      8,898      8,593      8,592      8,592      

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
General Balances £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Opening Balance 19,004      19,004    19,004    19,004    19,004    
Forecast Movement -            -          -          -          -          
Closing Balance 19,004      19,004    19,004    19,004    19,004    

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
All Balances £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Opening Balance 81,313      68,862    62,420    54,020    45,551    
Forecast Movement 12,451-      6,442-      8,400-      8,469-      8,850      
Closing Balance 68,862      62,420    54,020    45,551    54,401    

Other potential uses 15,540-      5,801-      4,566-      3,356-      2,837-      
Prior years other potential uses 15,540-    21,341-    25,907-    29,263-    
Impact Reserves Action Plan 600           9,000      10,200    11,400    13,200    
Updated Closing Balance 53,922      50,079    38,313    27,688    35,501    

Page 91



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 
Report to:    Finance, Commercial Revenue and Contracts Policy and Accountability 

Committee 
 
Date:  29th January 2020 
 
Subject: Section 106 Agreements – Update report 
 
Responsible Directors: Jo Rowlands Strategic Director for the Economy, Hitesh 
Jolapara Strategic Director Finance and Governance   
 
Report Authors : Joanne Woodward, Chief Planning Officer, and Emily Hill, 
Assistant Director of Finance   
 

 
Summary 
 
Following a previous report of 2nd July 2019 to this Committee, this report provides 
an update of the current position regarding Section 106 (S106) balances of funds 
received and pending, and the proposed expenditure of S106 funds for 2019/20. It 
also provides a summary of the further work being undertaken, including on the  
governance arrangements for decision making. 
 
Recommendation 
 

1. The Committee note the report. 
 
 
Wards Affected: All 

 
 

H&F Priorities 
 

Our Priorities Summary of how this report aligns to the 
H&F Priorities  

 Building shared prosperity The Council uses planning obligations to 
ensure the benefits of new development are 
realised by existing residents and 
businesses. This is achieved through 
various means, including but not limited to 
the provision of new community facilities; 
enhancements to open space; maximising 
job opportunities in both construction and 
post construction phases; and 
improvements in environmental quality. 

 Creating a compassionate 
council 

The Council uses planning obligations to 
deliver facilities and services, including but 
not limited to improvements to existing 
facilities to ensure these are accessible to 

Page 92

Agenda Item 6



all in the community. 

 Doing things with local 
residents, not to them 

The priorities for securing obligations seek 
to reflect local residents’ views on the 
impacts a development will have on an area 
and the improvements necessary to address 
these. Local residents and businesses are 
also engaged in the delivery of new facilities 
and services.  

 Being ruthlessly financially 
efficient 

From the negotiation of obligations, to the 
procurement of facilities, the Council seeks 
to ensure we maximise the benefits from 
new development and are robust in getting 
value for money, including leveraging in 
further external funding where appropriate. 

 Taking pride in H&F The overarching aim of Council’s use of 
planning obligations is to ensure the impacts 
of growth are managed and that new 
development benefits new as well as 
existing residents and that all residents have 
equitable access to high quality services, 
amenities, that met their needs. 

 
Contact Officer(s): 
 
Name: Joanne Woodward 
Position: Chief Planning Officer 
Telephone: 020 8753 4429 
Email: joanne.woodward@lbhf.gov.uk  
 
Name: Emily Hill 
Position: Assistant Director of Finance  
Telephone: 020 8753 3145 
Email: Emily.Hill@lbhf.gov.uk  
 
Name: Matthew Paterson 
Position: Interim Head of Spatial Planning 
Telephone: 0777 6672 447 
Email: matt.patterson@lbhf.gov.uk  
 

 
Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 
 
None. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
1. BACKGROUND 

Page 93

mailto:joanne.woodward@lbhf.gov.uk
mailto:Emily.Hill@lbhf.gov.uk
mailto:matt.patterson@lbhf.gov.uk


 
1.1. Since 2014 the Council has negotiated over £600 million worth of developer 

contributions from new developments in the borough through planning 
agreements and the Community Infrastructure Levy.  This includes financial 
as well as non-financial contributions received through s106 agreements, 
along with the Community Infrastructure Levy. A summary of the main 
agreements that contribute to this total and the financial/non-financial funding 
secured, is provided at Appendix 1. 
 

1.2. In respect of non-financial contributions, an estimated cash value has been 
derived based on the following assumptions: 

 

 On-site affordable housing for rent – cost of the unit including grant 

 On-site discounted market housing – the value of the subsidy 

 Works in kind, such as the provision of public realm, CCTV, highways 
improvements or community facilities – comparable estimates of the cost 
to the Council if it were to undertake the works 

 Benefits secured for residents or employees, such as free membership to 
car clubs or health facilities, contributions to bike purchasing – cash value 
of the discount or membership for the period offered, with an 80% uptake 
by scheme occupants 

 Benefits secured for businesses, security or town centre management 
requirements – comparable cost to the Council, such as street cleaning, 
event organising and hosting, and community liaison officers  

 Other benefits secured, such as local employment opportunity 
requirements – comparable costs the Council incurs providing the same 
services, such as job brokerage, construction training placement, and 
apprenticeships. 
 

1.3. In addition to the above, the Council has secured other forms of obligations 
that benefit local residents and businesses but for which it is difficult to assign 
a monetary value. Such benefits include, but are not limited to, securing 
incubator space for small businesses, local procurement/supply chain 
requirements, securing new rights of way or better links and connections, the 
preservation of archaeological remains and heritage features, and the 
protection and enhancement of biodiversity. These are therefore not included 
within the sums in Appendix 1. 
  

1.4. It should also be noted that the £600m+ excludes the cost of S278 works to 
the public highway as well as public transport improvements negotiated 
separately on these developments by Transport for London, which also 
benefit Hammersmith and Fulham.  

 
CURRENT POSITION REGARDING S.106 FUNDS  
 
1.5. There are currently 228 individual S106 agreements in the programme, 

containing over 1,150 heads of terms. Funds have been received for 165 of 
these agreements and projects to deliver on the obligations are also 
underway. The remaining agreements are signed and completed although 
funds have not yet been received as the trigger points for payments have not 

Page 94



been reached. Trigger points typically relate to a specific stage of 
development, such as commencement of development works on site or the 
first occupation of a residential unit and are therefore outside the Council’s 
direct control.  

 
1.6. Table 1 below summarises the balances at 1st January 2020 in respect of the 

S106 funds already received, expected future receipts, and the proposed 
S106 spend on projects and services over the next four years (2019/20 – 
2022/23). 

 
Table 1 – Overview of S106 balances at 1st January 2020 
 

 £m 

Available balance (cash in hand) at 1 January 2020 55.0 

Expected future receipts 124.1 

Total current and expected future funds 179.1 

Proposed expenditure 63.5 

 
 
1.7. The balance of available funds, where cash has been received by developers, 

is currently £55m.  The majority of these funds are limited to certain purposes 
or types of infrastructure through individual legal agreements or certain 
locations within the Borough.  Appendix 2 (attached) summarises the funds 
already received against the purposes for which the funding was secured.  

 
1.8. Future receipts negotiated but not yet received are in the region of £124m.  

These are highly dependent on wider economic factors and whether 
development comes forward or not.  Appendix 2 indicates the expected future 
funds that could be received over the next 10 to 15 years. As with the 
available balances, the future funds must be spent in accordance with the 
purpose for which the funding has been secured. It should be noted that the 
future funds exclude the S106 funds agreed for schemes where currently 
there is little prospect of the proposed developments coming forward, such as 
Earl's Court, Stamford Bridge, and Albert & Swedish wharves. 

 
1.9. A number of notable S106 agreements were completed over the last year 

which continue to add to the programme.  These are summarised in table 2 
below.   

 
Table 2 – Notable agreements signed over last 12 months 
 

S106 agreement Value  
(Excluding non-financial obligations) 

Olympia Exhibition Centre £33.8m 

Watermeadow Court £6.38m 

 
 
 
 
PRPOSED EXPENDITURE OF S106 FUNDS FOR 2019/20 

Page 95



 
1.10. The report of 2nd July 2019 to this Committee provided a list of the major 

projects that had received S106 funding over the last two financial years. In 
total, since April 2012, the Council has spent circa £72.6m of S106 monies on 
the provision of a range of facilities and services, and affordable housing.   

 
1.11. As indicated in Table 1 above, there is currently £63.5m of planned/proposed 

expenditure on projects over the next four years (2019/20 - 2022/23). Table 3 
below summarises proposed spend areas for the future.   

 
Table 3 – Proposed expenditure 
 

Themes for Spend Estimated 
expenditure 

2019/20 (£’000) 

Estimated 
expenditure 

2020/21-2022/23 
(£000) 

Affordable Housing 3,416 22,518 

Arts and Cultural projects 143 30 

Community Facilities 2,474 1,124 

Community Safety and Security 2,587 3,543 

Community Wellbeing and Social Inclusion 1,113 1,737 

Economic Development 1,615 6,494 

Environmental Improvements 868 1,233 

Heritage and Conservation 40 50 

Increase in Council Service Requirements 3,300 - 

Parks, Leisure and Sports Facilities 1,263 1,372 

Schools and Higher Education 2,250 - 

Transport and Public Realm 4,067 168 

Total 23,161 40,327 

 
1.12. The Planning and Finance teams have been working closely with the various 

service areas of the Council to ensure the proposed expenditure aligns with 
the purpose for which the funds have been received, that there is available 
funding to cover the cost of the project, alternative sources of funding are 
utilised where appropriate, and that the projects represent value for money to 
the Council and residents.   

 
1.13. In regard to the above, this includes projects such as the North End Road 

Project and Borough of Culture, where the current S106 spend is limited to 
developing the bids for various external funding pots, such as the Mayor’s 
Good Growth Funds and Liveable Neighbourhoods initiatives. Indicative levels 
of S106 match funding are included as earmarked but will be dependent on 
the approval of bids and the level of funding secured.  

 
1.14. An exercise is currently underway to review expenditure incurred on all of 

these projects up to the third quarter of 2019/20. 
 
 
 
GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS & PRACTICES 

Page 96



 
1.15. For most planning obligations the terms of the legal agreement limit the 

consideration of where and on what the S106 funding can be spent on. For 
example, funding secured to deliver specified works (e.g. ‘public realm 
improvements to the land shown hatched on the map’) or services (e.g. ‘for 
the Council to review and agree the sustainable travel plan’).  In such 
instances, governance is focused on ensuring the relevant Council service 
undertakes the works or service in a timely manner and this is recorded so 
that the S106 funds can be transferred, the obligation discharged, and the 
completion reported in annual reporting.  

 
1.16. However, there are instances where there is a degree of discretion within the 

headline obligation. For instance, where funds have been secured towards 
the provision of community facilities with or without geographic restrictions 
and without constraint on what type of community facility the funding could 
support.  

 
1.17. Currently, the Council has an agreed S106 protocol that services are required 

to follow.  This requires all proposed projects be supported by a business 
case, conform to the terms of the legal agreement, and demonstrate how the 
proposal delivers the Council’s Business Plan and its Local Plan priorities.  
Bids are assessed and prioritised by a S106 Board of senior officers and the 
Strategic Leadership Team (SLT).  SLT makes recommendations on spend to 
the S106 Member Board.  Following agreement of this Board, formal approval 
of the bid is sought either through the relevant Cabinet member or Cabinet in 
accordance with the Council’s Financial Regulations.   

 
1.18. This process is under review to facilitate a more strategic and longer term 

approach to prioritising spend.  Until recently, individual bids tended to be 
considered on an ad-hoc basis, with eligible S106 agreements then identified 
to fund the proposed project, and approved on a ‘first come first served’ basis. 
Following the completion of the detailed review of all agreements and their 
respective obligations, there is a more detailed understanding of the funds 
available and themes under which these need to be spent. This will allow a 
more strategic approach to its allocation and use by departments and services 
with plans being developed to spend those funds on a thematic basis. In 
addition, a more strategic approach to assessment of bids received is under 
development that can balance the funding of one project ahead of another 
and can better respond to changes in services priorities or alternative funding 
opportunities. 

 
1.19. Alongside the above review, further improvements in management and 

monitoring processes are under consideration including: 
- the process of informing services what S106 funding is available and for 

what purposes – so they can build these into their future work 
programmes;  

- more focused tracking of developments to improve the certainty about the 
timing of future S106 receipts; 

Page 97



- understanding service programme planning where these are reliant on 
S106 funding, to overcome service continuity issues arising from the 
intermittent nature of receipts of S106 funds from development;  

- the method of recording and reporting on the progress of delivering upon 
planning obligations to improve transparency; 

 
List of Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1 – Planning obligation benefits secured by the Council since 2014 
Appendix 2 – S106 funding available and future funds  
 

Page 98



DRAFT List of Mayor S106 Agreements and Renegotiated Sites Since May 2014 01/01/20

Site  Planning Reference Status

Financial 

Contributions

Value of Non 

Financial 

Contributions Total Value
Triangle Site  2017/02717/FUL Approved £285,000 £150,000 £435,000
853 – 857 Harrow Road  2017/01771/FUL Approved £7,500 £55,000 £62,500
La Reserve Hotel  2017/01128/FUL Approved £38,000 £25,000 £63,000
Walkabout  2016/04044/FUL Approved £128,700 £70,000 £198,700
230 – 234 North End Road  2016/03540/FUL Approved £5,000 £5,000
Threshold and Union House 2017/01898/FUL Approved £143,375 £130,000 £273,375
Nomis Studios 2014/06127/FUL Approved £999,320 £30,000 £950,000
Chelsea FC 2015/05050/FUL Not Proceeding £17,193,550 £5,000,000 £22,193,550
Landmark House  2017/00172/FUL Approved £120,000 £1,600,000 £1,700,000
Hammersmith Police Station  2016/04200/FUL Approved £109,000 £100,000 £211,000
11 – 15 Lillie Road  2016/03855/FUL Approved £18,000 £50,000 £68,000
Five Star Car Wash  2016/03271/FUL Approved £5,000 £2,560,000 £2,565,000
Savoy Circus  2016/02387/FUL Approved £97,000 £97,000
White City Gateway Site 2017/03837/FUL Approved £4,419,405 £6,500,000 £10,919,405
Jepson House 2016/01960/FR3 Approved £9,000,000 £9,000,000
Westfield Office Development 2017/04069/NMAT Approved £1,000,000 £1,000,000
Quayside Lodge  2017/03651/FUL Approved £219,380 £5,250,000 £5,469,380
Fulham Area Housing Office, Clem 

Attlee Estate 2017/03700/FUL Approved £61,328 £7,500,000 £7,561,328
Lavender Court 2017/04315/FUL Awaiting Decision £71,550 £11,250,000 £11,321,550
Westfield Extension Land Nth of 

Westfield  2016/03944/VAR On Site £22,500,000 £300,000 £22,800,000
Former BBC TV Centre 2015/02646/VAR On Site £10,000,000 £10,000,000 £20,000,000
Shepherds Bush Market Not Proceeding £6,000,000 £6,000,000
Hurlingham Retail Park Approved £5,074,430 £10,000,000
Albert Swedish and Comley Not Proceeding £13,335,027 £13,335,027
Fulham Town Centre LAND CONTRACT £2,600,000 £2,600,000
Thames Tideway ADDITIONAL COMMUNOn Site £2,200,000 £2,200,000
Thames Tideway S106 Agreement On Site £4,795,000 £4,795,000
St James (M&S) White City 2018/02116/NMAT On Site £47,300,000 £46,000,000 £93,300,000
Thames Wharf Not Proceeding £6,580,000 £3,400,000 £9,980,000
Mackenzie Trench House On Site £37,925 £1,600,000 £1,637,925
Fulham Wharf ‐ 51 Townmead Rd On Site £12,013,148 £9,480,000 £21,493,148
JV Stanhope JOINT VENTURE Approved £34,800,000 £34,800,000
HS2 On Site £4,500,000 £4,500,000
Other DM Sites Approved £830,000 £830,000

Land known as Quayside Lodge, 

William Morris Way, London SW6 2UZ 2017/03561/FUL Approved £300,000 £300,000

Fulham Football Club, Stevenage 

Road, London SW6 6HH 2017/04662/FUL Approved £2,185,777 £2,185,777

Land known as Ark Swift Primary 

Academy, Australia Road, White City 

Estate, London 2017/04800/FUL Approved £252,000 £17,750,000 £18,002,000

Fulham Gasworks 2018/02100/COMB Approved £3,662,770 £206,500,000 £210,162,770
Land Bounded By Fulham Gasworks 

And Railway Line (Chelsea Creek), 

Imperial Road 2018/02929/FUL Approved £3,404,902 £3,404,902
68 ‐ 72 Hammersmith Road 2017/02883/FUL Approved £166,660 £166,660
West King Street renewal 2018/01500/FUL Approved £995,000 £12,500,000 £13,495,000

Former Dairy Quest Site Approved £8,047,100 £32,750,000 £40,797,100
Olympia 2018/03100/FUL Approved £33,832,300 £41,000,000 £74,832,300
Centre House, White City 2018/03058/FUL Awaiting Signing £4,400,000

Total £213,831,147 £471,452,000 £685,711,397

Awaiting Decision

Planning 

Application not 

yet determined

Not yet signed

Committee 

resolved to grant 

planning 

permission but 

s106 not yet 

signed

Approved
S106 signed, 

decision issued.

Not proceeding

Development not 

now expected to 

come forward

Key to Status

Page 99



Appendix 2 – S106 Funds Available and Future Funds by Theme (at 1.1.2020) 
 

Themes 
Available 
Funds 

Future Funds 
(Excl. risky 
items) 

Available + 
Future Funds  

Affordable Housing provision 18,170,804 30,306,600 48,477,404 

Arts and Cultural Projects 8,000 2,550,000 2,558,000 

Community Facilities 3,267,006 3,601,696 6,868,702 

Community Safety and Security 321,866 716,000 1,037,866 

Community Wellbeing and Social Inclusion 1,438,462 5,350,000 6,788,462 

Economic Development 2,163,963 6,331,430 8,495,393 

Environmental Improvements 1,231,793 2,608,857 3,840,650 

Heritage and Conservation 157,200 60,000 217,200 

Opportunity Area/Fulham Town centre 6,360,744 4,275,000 10,635,744 

Opportunity Area/Hammersmith Town Centre 1,695,560 8,960,000 10,655,560 

Opportunity Area/White City 4,140,721 31,537,917 35,678,638 

Parks, Leisure and Outdoor Sports Facilities 2,666,790 2,352,535 5,019,325 

Schools and Higher Education 1,812,517 2,291,550 4,104,067 

Thames Tidal Tunnel 152,027 
 

152,027 

Transport and Public Realm 11,365,879 23,159,433 34,525,312 

Grand Total 54,953,330 124,101,017 179,054,347 

 

 

Page 100



  

  

 

 
 

CIVIC CAMPUS PROGRAMME 

 

January 2020 Update 
 

Page 101

Agenda Item 7



1 Programme Update 
 
 

Management summary RAG status 

Summary Programme 
Status 

Milestones Budget Risks 

This reporting 
period 

GREEN GREEN GREEN AMBER 

Last reporting 
period 

GREEN GREEN GREEN AMBER 

 
The programme is developing as planned. Programme is on track. Budget is 
currently forecasting an underspend. 
 
The overall programme is made up of 3 distinct Phases: 
 
Phase 1 – Office Decant – the decant of 1,400 staff from the Town hall and Town 
hall extension into new office locations, to Shortlands, Clockworks, 145 King Street 
and 43 Beavor Lane. This is now complete, with the exception of specialist CCTV 
services which are due to move at the end of February 2020. 
 
Phase 2 – Demolition and Enabling works – This involves initial surveys (e.g 
intrusive asbestos and structural surveys), soft strip and final demolition of the site 
(Town Hall Extension only) in preparation for main works contract to process. 
 
The demolition contractor has been procured and started on site on the 1st 
September 2019 on programme. Hoardings have been erected and there is now no 
public access to the Town hall and Town hall extension. Surveys have commenced 
and the demolition contractor is mobilising ahead of internal works, soft strip and 
structural demolition works. Structural demolition has started and is due to complete 
at the end of May 2020.  
 
Phase 3 – Main works – This sets out the design development, procurement of a 
main contractor and start on site. 
 

Contractor procurement has commenced and tenders have been received, with and 

appointment planned for February 2020. The contractor will commence the first 

phase of works under a Pre-Construction Services Agreement (PCSA) to complete 

the design and construction works plan, and complete any necessary enabling 

works. Enabling works will commence from February 2020, with main construction 

programmed to start on site at the end of June 2020, on programme. 

Key Milestones are set out below: 

 3rd Sept 19 – Demolition commences 

 15th Oct 19 – Full planning permission granted 

 15th Dec 19 – Start TH Stage4 design 

 16th Oct 19 – Main Contractor Tender issue 

Page 102



 18th Dec 19 – Main Contractor Tender returns 

 29th Feb 20 – Contractor Award 

 2nd March 20 – Decant of Network Comms Hub 

 29th May 20 – Demolition of Town Hall Extension completed 

 30th June 20 – Main Contractor Works Commence 

 30st April 2022 – Town Hall complete 

 30st June 2023 – All works complete 

2 Recent Decisions 
 

The Council’s cabinet on 6th January 2020 recommended to Full Council planned for 
22nd January 2020 to: 
 

1. Approve a capital budget of up to £64m for the purchase of the office space, 
start-up units, commercial units, restaurant and cinema as set out in this 
report and the associated professional fees and Stamp Duty Land Tax 
(SDLT). The total budget will be funded by general fund borrowing, 
represented by an increase in the Council’s capital financing requirement, 
supplemented by capital receipts, or developer contributions when available, 
with final confirmation of funding delegated to the Strategic Director, Finance 
and Governance, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Commercial Services.  

2. Approve a capital budget of up to £25m to purchase a 50% stake in the joint 
venture limited liability partnership with A2 Dominion, funded by general fund 
borrowing, represented by an increase in the Council’s capital financing 
requirement. 

Recommendation one above is for the capital budget to enable the acquisition of 
commercial units that will be constructed by the King Street Joint Venture as part of 
the Civic Campus Programme.  For each of the buildings, the Council will then 
secure lessees paying rent to the Council, covering the cost of the acquisition over 
45 years. Negotiations have already begun and discussions are well advanced with 
potential occupiers. This is an investment decision by the Council, separate from the 
other budgets associated with the refurbishment and the joint venture. The Council 
will only complete this investment if it is satisfied that the market value the joint 
venture is asking for is justified and the financial modelling shows acceptable return 
to the Council. The joint venture retains the option to dispose the units to a third 
party. 
 
The need for an equity equalisation mechanism was identified in the December 2018 
cabinet and January 2019 Full Council reports, referencing the need to establish how 
equity in the joint venture be kept in balance so all parties shared equally in the 
scheme.  An equalisation method is needed, as on the basis that the council’s land 
was being considered as equity and it is getting the glass box in return, its equity 
was being withdrawn earlier than all other funders, leaving the LLP in a 
fundamentally unbalanced position, as well as being a less efficient use of the 
funding available to the LLP. 
 

Page 103



 

To ensure that the Council and A2Dominion share equally both risks and rewards, it 
is proposed that the Council provide a contribution of up to £25m as equity into the 
joint venture (JV) at the most financially efficient point in the development 
programme.  This will be funded by general fund borrowing, represented by an 
increase in the Council’s capital financing requirement. This has a cost to the 
Council, above that reported in January 2019, as the Council will either lose the 
opportunity cost of forgone investment income, or need to borrow and incur interest 
costs. Provided the development is financially viable this equity will be returned to 
the Council before any distribution of profits. 

The additional costs of interest (or opportunity cost) will be reduced by increased 
profit distribution from the joint venture, due to reduced financing costs of the JV. 
This is because the Council’s opportunity cost is expected to be significantly lower 
than the JV’s borrowing costs. The interest cost is sensitive to the timing of the 
equity contribution and modelling of the expected cashflows are being undertaken 
and discussed with A2Dominion to determine the most efficient point at which the 
Council should put its contribution into the JV. 

As noted, this effectively changes the treatment of the land – instead the joint 
venture is acquiring land in a barter arrangement in exchange for constructing the 
glass pod. So either way the Council still gets the construction of the pod, before A2 
Dominion is able to withdraw any equity. 

3  Budget Update. 

 
In January 2019, Full Council approved the following recommendations for the Civic 
Campus programme:  
 

1) Decant Budget of £36,734,027 (made up of an additional budget of £27.3m 

and existing budgets from previous reports, as noted in paragraph 9.22 of the 

Full Council report). Final confirmation of funding was delegated to the Chief 

Executive, as advised by the Strategic Director, Finance and Governance, in 

consultation with the Leader of the Council, the Cabinet Member for the 

Economy and the Arts and the Cabinet Member for Finance and Commercial 

Services, and; 

 

2) A capital budget of up to £45.6m for the refurbishment and fit out of the Town 

Hall building. Final confirmation of this funding has been delegated to the 

Strategic Director, Finance and Governance in consultation with the Leader of 

the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance and Commercial Services.  

The decant is now complete and we are finalising accounts with the contractors. The 
current budget is currently forecasting an underspend. 
 
A further analysis of current financial performance is set out in Appendix 3 

          
 

Page 104



4 Governance 
 
The progress of the project is monitored and scrutinised by a number of formal 
Boards.  
 
The programme reports to: 
 

1) Programme Board – Chaired by the CEO, the Board sits monthly to review 

progress, budget control and design development.  

2) LBHF Programme Management Office (PMO) reporting – Chaired by senior 

LBHF officers, the group reviews and scrutinises project progress, project 

controls and delivery milestones. 

3) LBHF Audit Committee. 

 
In addition to this the Council has employed its own Contract Administrator (Currie & 
Brown) who has a responsibility to monitor progress, the administration of each 
contract with particular focus on the Town hall refurbishment and validate and 
challenge cost and expenditure across the programme. The Council has also 
retained BNP Paribas who will advise the Council on land valuation. 
  

Page 105



Appendix 1 
 
Overall Programme Summary 
 

 

 

  

P
age 106



Appendix 2  
 
JV Structure and responsibilities 

 

P
age 107



PROJECT NAME Civic Campus 
Programme

REPORT DATE
20/01/2020

PROJECT STATUS
On track

PROGRAMME COMPLETED
32%

TASKS RAG STATUS
PRIORI
TY

PRROGRAMME 
STATUS

Decant Scoping & Enabling Works G COMPLETE

Decant Construction Works - 
Clockworks

G COMPLETE

Decant Construction Works - 
Shortlands

G COMPLETE

Specialist Construction Works - 145 
King Street

G COMPLETE

Decant Move Programme G IN FINAL STAGES

Final Office Clearance G ★ IN PROGRESS

Demolition Period G ★ IN PROGRESS

Main Works Procurement & 
Appointment 

G ★ IN PROGRESS

Main Works Construction Period G ★ IN PROGRESS

Buidling Handover G ★ IN PROGRESS

 

10/05/2016 22/09/2017 04/02/2019 18/06/2020 31/10/2021 15/03/2023 27/07/2024

Decant Scoping & Enabling Works

Decant Construction Works - Clockworks

Decant Construction Works - Shortlands

Specialist Construction Works - 145 King Street

Decant Move Programme

Final Office Clearance

Demolition Period

Main Works Procurement & Appointment

Main Works Construction Period

Buidling Handover

Programme End Date

£36,734,027 
£38,800,000 

£6,800,000 
£10,007,302 

£764,015 

£33,467,839 

£38,800,000 

£6,800,000 

£(3,266,188)

£- £-

 £(10,000,000)

 £(5,000,000)

 £-

 £5,000,000

 £10,000,000

 £15,000,000

 £20,000,000

 £25,000,000

 £30,000,000

 £35,000,000

 £40,000,000

 £45,000,000

WKSR Decant & Building
Accommodation

Town Hall Refurbishment Town Hall Fit Out

Civic Campus Budget Update

Approved Budget Actual Expenditure - Dec 2019 Forecast Variance

Programme Managers Update 
General - The WSKR programme continues to progress and remains on programme and under budget. The decant into new offices is complete soft strip 
of the town hall and demolition of the town hall extension is well underway and is progressing on schedule. The demolition is due to complete in May 
2020.  This will then commence main works in June 2020 to secure delivery of the Town hall in April 2022

Town Hall Refurbishment - Planning permission and heritage listed consent has been received for the project, one of the major prerequisites to 
finalising the joint venture agreement. RIBA Stage 3 Design Development is complete. The current cost plan is on budget and the project is currently 
completing the value engineering process at the end of Stage 3 design to identify potential savings and cost reduction. The procurement for the main 
works is concluding now. Three tenders were recieved on programme at the end of December and the analysis of the tenders is currently ongoing.

 £-

 £10,000,000

 £20,000,000

 £30,000,000

 £40,000,000

 £50,000,000

 £60,000,000

 £70,000,000

 £80,000,000

 £90,000,000

N
ov

-1
8

D
ec

-1
8

Ja
n-

19
Fe

b-
19

M
ar

-1
9

Ap
r-

19
M

ay
-1

9
Ju

n-
19

Ju
l-1

9
Au

g-
19

Se
p-

19
O

ct
-1

9
N

ov
-1

9
D

ec
-1

9
Ja

n-
20

Fe
b-

20
M

ar
-2

0
Ap

r-
20

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
n-

20
Ju

l-2
0

Au
g-

20
Se

p-
20

O
ct

-2
0

N
ov

-2
0

D
ec

-2
0

Ja
n-

21
Fe

b-
21

M
ar

-2
1

Ap
r-

21
M

ay
-2

1
Ju

n-
21

Ju
l-2

1
Au

g-
21

Se
p-

21
O

ct
-2

1
N

ov
-2

1
D

ec
-2

1
Ja

n-
22

Fe
b-

22
M

ar
-2

2
Ap

r-
22

M
ay

-2
2

Ju
n-

22
Ju

l-2
2

Au
g-

22

Civic Campus Budget Update

Cumulative Total Forecast Expenditure Cumulative Total Actual Decant Forecast

Town Hall Refurb Forecast Town Hall Fit Out Forecast Decant Future Forecast

Town Hall Refurb Future Forecast

£10,771,317 

£2,211,011 

£69,351,699 

Civic Campus Budget Update

Actuals to December 19 Forecast to December 19 Total Budget

Phase 1 - Decant.                        Phase 2 - Demolition & Enabling Works.                        Phase 3 - Build

TODAY

P
age 108



Document is Restricted

Page 109

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 113

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

WORK PROGRAMME 2019 – 2020   
 
Summer 2019 agenda  

Topic Lead Officer Date 
requested 

Meeting 
Date 

Section 106 Update Report  
 

 Future receipts vs Committed funds update 

 Update on earmarked funds 

 Report on s106 community benefits  

 Update on s106 projects over £1 million 

Jo Rowlands/ 
Joanne 
Woodward 

November 
2018 

July 2019 

West King Street Renewal Programme Update Jo Rowland February 
2019 

Sept 2019/ 
Jan 2020 

Ways of working linking IT and new offices - 
To combine Work styles and patterns and IT 
Desktop Strategy 

Mark Grimley 
and Veronica 
Barella 

July 2018 July 2019 

 

Unallocated 

 How the Council will reduce staffing by 25% 
over 5 years (Part of ZBB report). 

 Workforce retention piece – ensuring a 
stable and reliable workforce. 

 A report back on staff motivation levels. 

Martin Calleja November 
2018 

Reports to 
PSR 
Committee 

Zero Based Budgeting Martin Calleja February 
2019 

To PSR 
Committee 

Mitie repairs in house, what’s drove the 
decision, what was the previous spend, what is 
the future anticipated spend, what financial 
controls are in place etc. 

Jo Rowland November 
2018 

 

IT – including major contracts and how a 
modern council can use IT to engage / interface 
with residents. IT would be a good area to 
encourage residents with expert knowledge to 
inform our strategy. 

Veronica 
Barella 

September 
2018 

 

Lessons learned on major issues from other 
Council’s.  

Relevant 
Service 
Directors 

September 
2018 

 

Longer term financial planning (10+ years) and 
investment strategies. 

Hitesh 
Jolapara 

September 
2018 

 

Developing an operating model for the 
organisation. 

 September 
2018 

 

Ideas on how to involve the public in setting the 
budget and prioritising spend. 

Hitesh November 
2018 

 

A large capital project to be brought to the 
committee for scrutiny. 

Service 
Director  

November 
2018 

 

Lesson learnt on from savings delivered and the 
consequences – how delivery was monitored, 
any unintended consequences/ costs elsewhere 
(e.g. look at last 3 years’ savings and mention 
improvements to process) 

Hitesh 
Jolapara 

July 2018  

 

Page 214

Agenda Item 8


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	4 2020 Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS)
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	App 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5

	5 Reserves Strategy and Action Plan
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	6 Section 106 Agreements - Update report
	Appendix 1_S106 Agreements Since 2014 summary 290120
	Appendix 2 Available & Future Funds

	7 Civic Campus Programme - January 2020 Update
	Civic Campus Update Dashboard January 2020
	Civic campus EXEMPT APPENDIX A
	campus WKSR Financial Report exempt

	8 Committee Work Programme

